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TENNANT COMPANY
2014
ANNUAL REPORT

Form 10-K
(Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934)

PART I

ITEM 1 — Business

General Development of Business

Tennant Company, a Minnesota corporation founded1®70 an
incorporated in 1909, is a world leader in designimanufacturing ar
marketing solutions that empower customers to aehiguality cleanin
performance, significantly reduce their environnaéihpact and help creat
cleaner, safer, healthier world. Tennant is conedittto creating ar
commercializing breakthrough, sustainable cleairingvations to enhance
broad suite of products including: floor mainterarand outdoor cleani
equipment, chemicdlee and other sustainable cleaning technolc
aftermarket parts and consumables, equipment nmainte and repair servi
and specialty surface coatings. Tennant products ased in rete
establishments and distribution centers, factodesl warehouses, puk
venues such as arenas and stadiums, office buslidgofpools and universiti
hospitals and clinics, parking lots and streetsg ather environment
Customers include building service contract clesrterwhom organizatio
outsource facilities maintenance, as well as bgsie® that perform faciliti
maintenance themselves. The Company reaches thesEmers through tl
industry's largest direct sales and service orgdioiz and through a stro
and well-supported network of authorized distrilsiteworldwide.

Segment and Geographic Area Financial Information

The Company has one reportable business segmdes t®acustome
geographically located in the United States wer@938 million, $422.
million and $406.2 million for the years ended Dmber 31, 2014 , 2018nc
2012 , respectively. Lonlived assets located in the United States were2
million and $82.7 million as of the years ended &sber 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively. Additional financial information ohet Companys segment ar
geographic areas is provided throughout Item 8 &te 17 of th
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Principal Products, Markets and Distribution

The Company offers products and solutions mainlynsigging o
mechanized cleaning equipment, chemfoa¢ and other sustainable clear
technologies, aftermarket parts and consumablespmgnt maintenance a
repair service, specialty surface coatings, andnkss solutions such
financing, rental and leasing programs. The Compfers their watebase:
sustainable cleaning innovation, ec-H20, on walkbehind and ride
scrubbers. The Comparsysuite of offerings are marketed and sold unde
following brands: Tennanf , Nobles® , Green Machines' , Alfa Umse
Empresa Tennaritand Orbio®. The Orbio brand of products and solutior
developed and managed by Orbio Technologies, apgeated by tf
Company to focus on expanding the opportunitiesfoategory of sustainal
On-Site Generation (OSG) technologies that create disgense effecti
cleaning and antimicrobial solutions on site withifacility. The Company
principal markets include targeted vertical indiestr such as rete
manufacturing/warehousing, education, healthcard haspitality, amon
others. The Company sells products directly in Dbintries and throug
distributors in more than 80 countries. The Compsetyes customers in th
geographies via three geographically aligned bssinmits: The Americe
which consists of North America and Latin Ameri&EA, which consisi
of Europe, the Middle East and Africa, and APAC jekhhconsists of the As
Pacific region.

Raw Materials

The Company has not experienced any significanhosual problems
the availability of raw materials or other producimponents. The Compe
has solesource vendors for certain components. A disrupitiosupply fron
such vendors may disrupt the Compangperations. However, the Comp
believes that it can find alternate sources inghent there is a disruption
supply from such vendors.

Intellectual Property

Although the Company considers that its patentspphietar
technologies, customer relationships, licensesletrarks, trade names :
brand names in the aggregate constitute a valwesisiet, it does not regard
business as being materially dependent upon agiesintellectual property.

Seasonality

Although the Companyg’ business is not seasonal in the traditional g
the percentage of revenues in each quarter typicatiges from 22% to 28
of the total year. The first quarter tends to beh&t low end of the ran
reflecting customers'initial slow ramp up of capital purchases and
Companys efforts to close out orders at the end of eaet. yEhe second a
fourth quarters tend to be towards the high endhefrange and the th
quarter is typically in the middle of the range.

Working Capital

The Company funds operations through a combinaiforash and ca:
equivalents and cash flows from operations. Wherepessible, cas
management is centralized and intercompany fingn@nused to provic
working capital to subsidiaries as needed. In amlditcredit facilities ar
available for additional working capital needsmrdstment opportunities.

Major Customers
The Company sells its products to a wide varietgugtomers, none
which are of material importance in relation to thesiness as a whole. 1

customer base includes several governmental entitieich generally ha
terms similar to other customers.

Backlog

The Company processes orders within two weeksyerage. Therefor
no significant backlogs existed at December 314204d 2013 .






Competition

While there is no publicly available industry datancerning mark
share, the Company believes, through its own mamkstarch, that it is
world-leading manufacturer of floor maintenance and dfearequipmen
Significant competitors exist in all key geographagions. However, the k
competitors vary by region. The Company competaaasily on the basis
offering a broad line of higlality, innovative products supported by
extensive sales and service network in major market

Certain of the Compang’ competitors initiated legal and/or regula
challenges in 2010 and 2011 in multiple jurisdiefochallenging tt
Company's advertising claims pertaining to its &M waterbase:
technology. These claims have been closed with atemial impact to tr
Company.

Research and Development

The Company strives to be an industry leader inovation and i
committed to investing in research and developméné Companys Globa
Innovation Center in Minnesota and engineers thnougits global locatior
are dedicated to various activities, including eesking new technologies
create meaningful product differentiation, develemi of new product
improvements of existing product design or manufidcty processes a
exploring new product applications with customéms2014 , 2013 and 2012
the Company spent $29.4 million , $30.5 million &29.3 millionon researc
and development, respectively.

Environmental Compliance

Compliance with Federal, State and local provisiamgch have bee
enacted or adopted regulating the discharge ofriaénto the environmer
or otherwise relating to the protection of the eonment, has not had, and
Company does not expect it to have, a materiacefipon the Company’
capital expenditures, earnings or competitive pmsit

Employees

The Company employed 3,087 people in worldwide aj@ms as ¢
December 31, 2014 .

Available Information

The Company makes available free of charge, throtgh Investc
Relations website at investors.tennantco.comnisial report on Form 1K;
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$-orm 8K and amendmer
to those reports filed or furnished pursuant toti8acl3(a) or 15(d) of tt
Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable whelm material is file
electronically with, or furnished to, the Secustiand Exchange Commiss
(“SEC").

ITEM 1A — Risk Factors

The following are significant factors known to Ut could materiall:
adversely affect our business, financial condittoperating results.

We are subject to competitive risks associated with developing
innovative products and technologies, including but not limited to, not
expanding asrapidly or aggressively in the global market as our competitors,
our customers not continuing to pay for innovation and competitive
challenges to our products, technology and the underlying intellectual

property.

Our products are sold in competitive markets thhmug the world
Competition is based on product features and dedigand recognitior
reliability, durability, technology, breadth of mhact offerings, price, custom
relationships and aftesale service. Although we believe that the perfome
and price characteristics of our products will progl competitive solutions fi
our customers’ needs, our products generally caserthan our competitors’
products. This is due to our dedication to innawatiand continue
investments in research and development. We betiatecustomers will pa
for the innovations and quality in our products.wdwer, in the currer
economic environment, it may be difficult for usdompete with lower co:
products offered by our competitors and there camd assurance that ¢
customers will continue to choose our products greducts offered by ot
competitors. If our products, markets and servaresnot competitive, we m:
experience a decline in sales, pricing and marketres which adverse
impacts revenues, margin and the success of ouatiqes.

Competitors may also initiate litigation to chalienthe validity of ou
patents or claims, allege that we infringe uporirthatents, violate our pater
or they may use their resources to design comparptiducts that avo
infringing our patents. Regardless of whether diticfation is successful, suc
litigation could significantly increase our costadadivert managemerst’
attention from the operation of our business, whichld adversely affect o
results of operations and financial condition.

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, particularly the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against other major currencies, could result
in declinesin our reported net sales and net earnings.

We earn revenues, pay expenses, own assets and lialoilities in
countries using functional currencies other than thS. dollar. Because o
consolidated financial statements are presented.$ dollars, we transla
revenues and expenses into U.S. dollars at theageezxchange rate duri
each reporting period, as well as assets and itiabilinto U.S. dollars ¢
exchange rates in effect at the end of each rewpntieriod. Therefore
increases or decreases in the value of the U.Sardafjainst other maijc
currencies will affect our net revenues, net egrsirarnings per share and
value of balance sheet items denominated in foreigrencies as we transle
them into the U.S. dollar reporting currency. While typically use derivativ
financial instruments to hedge our transactiongloskre to certain foreic
currencydenominated assets and liabilities, we do not affyichedge the
translation of our foreigmlenominated functional currencies into our
dollar reporting currency. Fluctuations in foreigarrency exchange rate
particularly the strengthening of the U.S. dollayaimst major currencie
could materially affect our financial results.




We may encounter financial difficulties if the United States or other
global economies experience an additional or continued significant long-
term economic downturn, decreasing the demand for our products and
negatively affecting our sales growth.

Our product sales are sensitive to declines intahppending by ot
customers. Decreased demand for our products caddlt in decrease
revenues, profitability and cash flows and may impar ability to maintair
our operations and fund our obligations to othkrghe event of a continue
significant longterm economic downturn in the U.S. or other glc
economies, our revenues could decline to the gbattwe may have to tal
costsaving measures, such as restructuring actionsseThetions would k
particularly challenging due to the increase in kyge headcount over tl
past few years. In addition, other fixed costs wolhve to be reduced tc
level that is in line with a lower level of saleA. longterm economi
downturn that puts downward pressure on sales caigd lower stree
credibility relative to our publicly stated growtidrgets.

Our ability to effectively operate our Company could be adversely
affected if we are unable to attract and retain key personnel and other highly
skilled employees, provide employee development opportunities and create
effective succession planning strategies.

Our continued success will depend on, among ottiegs, the skills an
services of our executive officers and other keysgenel. Our ability t
attract and retain highly qualified managerial, htd@cal, manufacturing
research, sales and marketing personnel also ispactability to effectivel
operate our business. As the economy recovers antpanies grow an
increase their hiring activities, there is an irmerrisk of increased employ
turnover and the loss of valuable employees in pesitions, especially i
emerging markets. We believe the increased lodsepfpersonnel within
concentrated region could adversely affect ourssgitewth.

In addition, there is a risk that there may not ddequate taler
acquisition resources in place to support the @i new employees in
timely and efficient manner to appropriately aligith our growth strategy
The lack of talent acquisition resources could atdbit our ability to provide
training and development opportunities to all ergpks. This, in turn, coul
impede our workforce from embracing change and rbgiag the
improvements we have made in technology and otheinbss proces
enhancements.

We may not be able to upgrade and evolve our information technology
systems as quickly as we wish and we may encounter difficulties as we
upgrade and evolve these systems, which could adversely impact our abilities
to accomplish anticipated future cost savings, better serve our customers and
protect against information system disruption, corruption or intrusions.

We have many information technology systems thatimportant to th:
operation of our business and are in need of upgad order to effectivel

implement our growth strategy. Given our greaterpleasis on customer-

facing technologies, we may not have adequate ressuo upgrade ol
systems at the pace which the current businessoemvént demands. Th
could increase the risk that the Information Tedboy infrastructure, such :
access and security, is not adequately designeutdiect critical data ar
systems from theft, corruption, unauthorized usagejses, sabotage
unintentional misuse. Additionally, significantlypgrading and evolving tt
capabilities of our existing systems could leadh&fficient or ineffective us
of our technology due to lack of training or exptin these evolvin
technology systems. These factors could lead tanifgignt expense:
adversely impacting our results of operations amdiér our ability to offe
better technology solutions to our customers.

Increases in the cost of, quality, or disruption in the availability of, raw
materials and components that we purchase to manufacture our products
could negatively impact our operating results or financial condition.

Our sales growth, expanding geographical footmimt continued use
sole source vendors (concentration risk), coupléth wuppliers’ potential
credit issues, could lead to an increased risk bfemkdown in our supp
chain. There is an increased risk of defects dukedighly configured natui
of our purchased component parts that could rasgjtiality issues, returns
production slowdowns. In addition, modularization may lead to mecde
sourced products and as we seek to outsource thigndef certain ke
components, we risk loss of proprietary control Badoming more reliant ¢
a sole source. There is also a risk that the venderchose to supply our pa
and equipment fail to comply with our quality exfsmons, thus damaging o
reputation for quality and negatively impactingesal

The SEC has adopted rules regarding disclosuréeouse of €onflict
minerals” €commonly referred to as tin, tantalum, tungsten gafdl) which
are mined from the Democratic Republic of the Corigoproducts we
manufacture or contract to manufacture. These rude® required and wi
continue to require due diligence and disclosuferesf There are and w
continue to be costs associated with complying wittis disclosur
requirement, including costs to determine whiclwf products are subject
the rules and the source of any "conflict mineraiséd in these produc
Since our supply chain is complex, ultimately weym@ot be able t
sufficiently discover the origin of the conflict n@rals used in our produc
through the due diligence procedures that we imphgmf we are unable t
or choose not to certify that our products are kcnfnineral free, custome
may choose not to purchase our products. Altereltiuf we choose to us
only suppliers offering conflict free minerals, wannot be sure that we w
be able to obtain metals, if necessary, from sugppléers in sufficien
quantities or at competitive prices. Any one oioabination of these variot
factors could harm our business, reduce market dérfa our products, ar
adversely affect our profit margins, net sales, avetall financial results.

We may not be able to effectively manage organizational changes which
could negatively impact our operating results or financial condition.

We are continuing to implement global standardipedcesses in ot
business despite lean staffing levels. We continwnsolidate and realloce
resources as part of our ongoing efforts to opnomr cost structure in tl
current economy. Our operating results may be negatimpacted if we ar
unable to implement new processes and manage eagi@mal changes. |
addition, if we do not effectively realize and sistthe benefits that the
transformations are designed to produce, we may falby realize the
anticipated savings of these actions or they maatieely impact our abilit
to serve our customers or meet our strategic dlagect




Our global operations are subject to laws and regulations that impose
significant compliance costs and create reputational and legal risk.

Due to the international scope of our operations, ave subject to
complex system of commercial, tax and trade reguiataround the worlc
Recent years have seen an increase in the devetb@nd enforcement «
laws regarding trade, tax compliance, labor an@étgafind antcorruption,
such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, amdlar laws from othe
countries. Our numerous foreign subsidiaries aritiasés are governed L
laws, rules and business practices that differ finmse of the U.S., b
because we are a U.S. based company, oftentimgatbelso subject to U.
laws which can create a conflict. Despite our diligahce, there is a risk th
we do not have adequate resources or comprehegmsigesses to stay curre
on changes in laws or regulations applicable tavaddwide and maintai
compliance with those changes. Increased compliegmgirements may lee
to increased costs and erosion of desired profiigmaAs a result, it i
possible that the activities of these entities maycomply with U.S. laws ¢
business practices or our Business Ethics Guiddations of the U.S. or loc.
laws may result in severe criminal or civil sangtp could disrupt oL
business, and result in an adverse effect on @utagon, business and rest
of operations or financial condition. We cannotdice the nature, scope
effect of future regulatory requirements to whictr mwperations might t
subject or the manner in which existing laws migiet administered ¢
interpreted.

We may be unable to conduct business if we experience a significant
business interruption in our computer systems, manufacturing plants or
distribution facilities for a significant period of time.

We rely on our computer systems, manufacturingtpland distributiol
facilities to efficiently operate our businesswié experience an interruption
the functionality in any of these items for a sfg@int period of time for an
reason, including unauthorized access to our systeme may not hav
adequate business continuity planning contingenicigslace to allow us t
continue our normal business operations on a teng-basis. In addition, tt
increase in customer facing technology raises ifle af a lapse in busine
operations. Therefore, significant lotgrm interruption in our business col
cause a decline in sales, an increase in expensesaald adversely impa
our financial results.

Inadequate funding or insufficient innovation of new technologies may
result in an inability to develop and commercialize new innovative products
and services.

We strive to develop new and innovative productsl @ervices t
differentiate ourselves in the marketplace. Newdpod development relie
heavily on our financial and resource investmentbadth the short term ai
long term. If we fail to adequately fund productd®pment projects or fur
a project which ultimately does not gain the madateptance we anticipate
we risk not meeting our customers' expectationsichvitould result ir
decreased revenues, declines in margin and lassudfet share.

We are subject to product liability claims and product quality issues that
could adversely affect our operating results or financial condition.

Our business exposes us to potential product iiabilsks that are
inherent in the design, manufacturing and distrdsutof our products. |
products are used incorrectly by our customersirynjnay result leading 1
product liability claims against us. Some of ouroducts or produc
improvements may have defects or risks that we mateyet identified the
may give rise to product quality issues, liabilityd warranty claims. Quali
issues may also arise due to changes in partseaifigations with supplier
and/or changes in suppliers. If product liabilitgims are brought against
for damages that are in excess of our insurancerage or for uninsure
liabilities and it is determined we are liable, duwsiness could be advers
impacted. Any losses we suffer from any liabilitgims, and the effect th
any product liability litigation may have upon theputation and marketabili
of our products, may have a negative impact onbuginess and operatil
results. We could experience a material designamufacturing failure in ot
products, a quality system failure, other safetyés, or heightened regulat
scrutiny that could warrant a recall of some of products. Any unforeses
product quality problems could result in loss ofrke4 share, reduced sal
and higher warranty expense.

ITEM 1B — Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ITEM 2 — Properties

The Companys corporate offices are owned by the Company asa
located in the Minneapolis, Minnesota, metropolitarea. Manufacturin
facilities are located in Minneapolis, Minnesota;olldnd, Michigan
Louisville, Kentucky; Uden, The Netherlands; FatkitJnited Kingdom; Sa
Paulo, Brazil; and Shanghai, China. Sales officearehouse and stora
facilities are leased in various locations in NoAmerica, Europe, Japa
China, Australia, New Zealand and Latin Americae T@ompanys facilities
are in good operating condition, suitable for thiegpective uses and adeqt
for current needs. Further information regarding @ompanys property ani
lease commitments is included in the Contractudigations section of ltem
and in Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Stateis

ITEM 3 — Legal Proceedings

There are no material pending legal proceedinggrothan ordinar
routine litigation incidental to the Company’s mess.

ITEM 4 — Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.




PART Il
ITEM 5 — Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

MARKET INFORMATION —Tennant's common stock is traded on the New YooklSExchange, under the ticker symbol TNC. As ofuday 30, 201!
there were 397 shareholders of record. The comrwak price was $65.21 per share on January 30,.28&%ccompanying chart shows the high and lovs
prices for the Company’s shares for each full aririperiod over the past two years as reportethbyNew York Stock Exchange:

2014 2013
High Low High Low
First Quarter $ 67.7C $ 58.21 % 498: $ 44.0%
Second Quarter 76.52 61.71 51.6Z 44.5(
Third Quarter 76.2¢ 67.0¢ 62.5( 49.64
Fourth Quarter 74.81 64.3( 68.7( 58.0¢t

DIVIDEND INFORMATION — Cash dividends on Tennantemmon stock have been paid for 70 consecutivesy§@annans annual cash divide
payout increased for the 43consecutive year to $0.78 per share in 2014, arase of $0.06 per share over 2013. Dividends aenerglly declared ea

quarter. On February 18, 2015, the Company annauacguarterly cash dividend of $0.20 per share lgayilarch 16, 2015, to shareholders of recor
March 2, 2015.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT OR DIRECT DEPOSIT OPTIONS Shareholders have the option of reinvesting qusrtévidends in additional shar
of Company stock or having dividends depositedatliydo a bank account. The Transfer Agent shoelddntacted for additional information.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR — Shareholders witbrenge of address or questions about their acecoaptcontact:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 64874

St. Paul, MN 55164-0854
(800) 468-9716

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION - Informatiomegarding equity compensation plans required byuRgign SK Item 201(d) i
incorporated by reference in Item 12 of this anmapbrt on Form 10-K from the 2015 Proxy Statement.

SHARE REPURCHASES -On April 25, 2012, the Board of Directors authodzie repurchase of 1,000,000 shares of our comstmek. Shar
repurchases are made from time to time in the oparket or through privately negotiated transactigmsnarily to offset the dilutive effect of sharissues
through our sharbased compensation programs. Our credit agreerandt®rivate Shelf Agreement restrict the paymemtiviflends or repurchasing of st

if, after giving effect to such payments, our leage ratio is greater than 2.00 to 1, in such dasigrlg such payments to an amount ranging from.@56illion
to $75.0 million during any fiscal year.

Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of

Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be
For the Quarter Ended Total Number of Shares Average Price Paid Per Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans
December 31, 2014 Purchased @ Share or Programs or Programs
October 1-31, 2014 759: $ 64.97 7,50(C 405,56¢
November 1-30, 2014 — — — 405,56¢
December 1-31, 2014 — — — 405,56¢
Total 759: $ 64.97 7,50(C 405,56¢

(1) Includes 92 shares delivered or attested tsatisfaction of the exercise price and/or tax withing obligations by employees who exercised ¢
options or restricted stock under employee shasedaompensation plans.




STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH — The following graph comgsathe cumulative total shareholder return on @atim common stock to two indict
S&P SmallCap 600 and Morningstar Industrials Sectbe graph below compares the performance fotasiefive fiscal years, assuming an investmel
$100 on December 31, 2009, including the reinvestrokall dividends.

5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN COMPARISON

350.00
300.00

250.00 //_’d
200.00 / ﬁ—ﬂ

100.00
50.00
0.00 . . . . : .
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
===Tennant Company == S &P Smallcap 600 Index ='w=Momingstar Industrials Sector |
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Tennant Company $100 $150 $154 $177 $277 $298
S&P SmallCap 600 $100 $126 $128 $148 $210 $222
Morningstar Industrials Sector $100 $124 $123 $142 $202 $221




ITEM 6 — Selected Financial Data
(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

Years Ended December 31 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Financial Results:
Net Sales $ 821,98: $ 752,01: $ 738,98( $ 753,99¢ $ 667,66
Cost of Sales 469,551 426,10: 413,68: (2 43481 © 383,34: @
Gross Margin - % 42.¢ 43.2 44.C 42.% 42.¢€
Research and Development Expense 29,43: 30,52¢ 29,26: 27,91: 25,957
% of Net Sales 3.€ 4.1 4.C 3.7 3.9
Selling and Administrative Expense 250,89t 232,97t @ 234,11 @ 241,628 @ 221,238 @
% of Net Sales 30.t 31.C 31.7 32.C 33.1
Gain on Sale of Business — — (789 (2 — —

% of Net Sales — — (0.2) — —
Profit from Operations 72,09’ 62,40: @ 62,70 @ 49,64t 37,13 @
% of Net Sales 8.8 8.3 8.5 6.€ 5.6

Total Other Expense, Net (2,559 (2,525 (2,819 (915) (2,407
Profit Before Income Taxes 69,53¢ 59,87¢ @ 59,89( @ 48,73 © 34,727 @
% of Net Sales 8.5 8.C 8.1 6.5 5.2
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 18,88" 19,647 @ 18,30¢ @ 16,017 ©® (76) @
Effective Tax Rate - % 27.2 32.¢ 30.€ 32.¢ (0.2)

Net Earnings 50,65 40,23: @ 41,58: @ 32,711 B 34,80: @
% of Net Sales 6.2 5.3 5.€ 4.3 5.2

Per Share Data:

Basic Net Earnings $ 2.7¢ $ 22 O g 22¢ @ ¢ 172 @ ¢ 1.88 @

Diluted Net Earnings $ 2.7C $ 214 O ¢ 218 @ ¢ 1.6¢ @ g 1.8 @

Diluted Weighted Average Shares 18,740,85 18,833,45 19,102,01 19,360,42 19,332,10

Cash Dividends $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7z $ 0.6¢ $ 0.6¢ $ 0.5¢

Financial Position:

Total Assets $ 486,93: $ 456,30t $ 420,76( $ 424,26. $ 403,66¢

Total Debt 28,13% 31,80: 32,32 36,45¢ 30,82¢

Total Shareholders’ Equity 280,65: 263,84t 235,05« 220,85: 216,13

Current Ratio 2.4 24 2.2 2.2 21

Debt-to-Capital Ratio 9.1% 10.8% 12.1% 14.2% 12.5%

Cash Flows:

Net Cash Provided by Operations  $ 59,36: $ 59,81« $ 47,56¢ $ 56,90¢ $ 42,53(

Capital Expenditures, Net of Disposals (29,29 (14,655 (14,599 (13,30) (9,939

Free Cash Flow 40,07( 45,15¢ 32,97: 43,60¢ 32,59¢

Other Data:

Depreciation and Amortization $ 20,06: $ 20,24¢ $ 20,87: $ 21,41¢ $ 21,19:

Number of employees at year-end 3,087 2,931 2,81¢ 2,86t 2,79:

The results of operations from our 2011 acquisitias been included in the Selected Financial Degtsepted above since its acquisition date.

(1) 2013 includes restructuring charges of $3,0E7tax ($2,938 aftetax or $0.15 per diluted share) and a tax benéf82 (or $0.03 per diluted sha
related to the retroactive reinstatement of the2201S. Federal Research and Development ("R&D") Ceedit.

(2) 2012 includes a gain on sale of business ofi$#8-tax ($508 after-tax or $0.03 per diluted ehaa restructuring charge of $760 pre-tax ($61€raf
tax or $0.04 per diluted share) and tax benefitmfan international entity restructuring of $2,qd8%$0.11 per diluted share).

(3) 2011 includes a Product Line Obsolescence ehafg$4,300 pre-tax ($3,811 aftierx or $0.20 per diluted share) and an internatienacutive
severance charge of $1,217 (or $0.06 per dilutade$h




(4) 2010 includes a tax benefit from the internaaioentity restructuring of $10,913 (or $0.56 péutdd share), a workforce redeployment charc
$1,671 pre-tax ($1,196 aftémx or $0.06 per diluted share), inventory revabdrafrom change in functional currency designatibue to international enti
restructuring of $647 pre-tax ($453 after-tax oi0®0per diluted share) and a revision of our 2008«rce reduction reserve of $277 pre-tax ($178rdaéx ol

$0.01 per diluted share).

ITEM 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

Tennant Company is a world leader in designing, ufeturing an
marketing solutions that empower customers to aehiguality cleanin
performance, significantly reduce their environnaéihpact and help creat
cleaner, safer, healthier world. Tennant is conedittto creating ar
commercializing breakthrough, sustainable cleairingvations to enhance
broad suite of products including: floor mainterarand outdoor cleani
equipment, chemicdlee and other sustainable cleaning technolc
aftermarket parts and consumables, equipment nmainte and repair servi
and specialty surface coatings. Tennant products ased in rete
establishments and distribution centers, factoaesl warehouses, puk
venues such as arenas and stadiums, office buslidgofpools and universiti
hospitals and clinics, parking lots and streetsgd aher environment
Customers include building service contract clearierwhom organizatiol
outsource facilities maintenance, as well as bgsie® that perform faciliti
maintenance themselves. The Company reaches thetemers through tl
industry's largest direct sales and service orgdioiz and through a stro
and well-supported network of authorized distrilbsitworldwide.

Net Sales in 2014 totaled $822.0 million , up fr§@&52.0 millionin the
prior year primarily due to strong sales to strategccounts and throu
distribution, continued demand for new productshsas the T17 ridi
scrubber, gains in commercial, industrial and ooatdequipment and sellil
price increases. 20l@rganic sales growth, excluding the unfavorableda
of foreign currency exchange of approximately 1.@%&s up approximate
10.3% with growth in all major geographical regior2014 Gross Profi
margin decreased 40 basis points to 42.9% from243a32013primarily due
to strong sales to strategic accounts and throigjhikdition that tend to ha
lower gross profit margins and also costs relatedhiring and trainin
additional manufacturing employees to support igaédr levels of productio
Selling and Administrative Expense (“S&A Expenséaifreased 7.7% bui
decreased 50 basis points as a percentage of Mt 8am $233.0 milliorin
2013 to $250.9 million in 201grimarily due to investments in direct sa
distribution and marketing to build organic salEisis was somewhat offset
continued cost controls and improved operatingcigfficies that favorah
impacted S&A Expense in 2014. Operating Profit éased 15.5%anc
Operating Profit margin increased 50 basis poimt8.8% in 2014 fron8.3%
in 2013due to higher Net Sales and lower R&D Expense &8 Expense
somewhat offset by lower Gross Margin, as a peagenf Net Sales. N
Earnings for 2014vere favorably impacted by a lower tax rate comgac
2013 due to the mix in taxable earnings by couatrgt favorable settlemel
on tax positions from prior years.

Net Earnings for 2013 were $1.4 million less th@12 The decrease
net earnings resulted primarily from 2013 restrringicharges of $3.0 millic
pre-tax ($2.9 million aftetax) being somewhat offset by a tax benefit of
million related to the retroactive reinstatementtaf 2012 U.S. Federal Ré
Tax Credit. 2013 Gross Profit margin decreaseda&stpoints to 43.3% frc
44.0% in 2012 due to changes in selling channelantk mix of products sol
Net Sales in 2013 totaled $752.0 million, up fro@8$.0 million in the pric
year primarily due to increased sales of indus&@lipment and high deme
for newly introduced products which were somewtlffged by lower sales
city cleaning equipment. 2013 organic sales growitjuding the impact
foreign currency exchange, was up approximatelye2idth growth in Nortl
America, Latin America and Asia Pacific being sorhatnoffset by declines
Europe due to challenging economic conditions. SERpense decreas
0.5%, or 70 basis points, as a percentage of Nes Saom $234.1 million i
2012 to $233.0 million in 2013 due to continuedhtigost controls ar
improved operating leverage. Operating Profit desee 0.5% and Operat
Profit margin declined 20 basis points to 8.3% 012 from 8.5% in 2012 d
to two restructuring charges taken during 2013lit@a$3.0 million an
increased investment in R&D activities.

Tennant continues to invest in innovative prodwestelopment witt8.6%
of 2014 Net Sales spent on R&D. During 2014e continued to invest
developing innovative new products for our tradiibcore business, as w
as in our Orbio Technologies Group, which is foclisa advancing a suite
sustainable cleaning technologies. New productsaatey driver ofsale:
growth. Eighteen new products were launched in 20deluding a line c
walk-behind burnishers, a mid-size battery-powetedr scrubber, a midize
rider sweeper with optimized dust control, the ©rbs3 system and a n
line of Alfa essentials.

We ended 2014 with a Debt-to-Capital ratio of 9.1%083.0 millionin
Cash and Cash Equivalents compared to $81.0 mélidhe end of 2013anc
Shareholders’ Equity of $280.7 million . During 201we generated operati
cash flows of $59.4 million . Total debt was $26illion as ofDecember 3:
2014 , compared to $31.8 million at the end of 2013
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Historical Results
The following table compares the historical resoltoperations for tt

years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 20d@llars and as a percent.
of Net Sales (in thousands, except per share amamat percentages):

2014 % 2013 % 2012 %
Net Sales $ 821,98: 100.C $ 752,01: 100.C $ 738,98( 100.¢
Cost of Sales 469,551 57.1 426,10: 56.7 413,68 56.C
Gross Profit 352,42 42.¢ 325,901 43.: 325,291 44
Operating Expense:
Research and
Development Expens 29,43; 3.6 30,52¢ 4.1 29,26! 4.0
Selling and
Administrative
Expense 250,891 30.5 232,97 31.C 234,11 31.7
Gain on Sale of
Business — — — — (789 (0.2)
Total Operating
Expenses 280,33 34.1 263,50! 35.C 262,59 35
Profit from Operations 72,097 8.8 62,40: 8.3 62,70: 8.5
Other Income (Expense):
Interest Income 30z — 39C 0.1 1,06¢ 0.1
Interest Expense (1,722) (0.2 (1,767) (0.2 (2,517 0.3
Net Foreign Currency
Transaction Losses (690 (0.2 (671) (0.2) (1,407) 0.2
Other (Expense)
Income, Net (449) (0.2 (487) (0.2) 38 —
Total Other
Expense, Net (2,559 0.3 (2,525 0.3 (2,819 0.4
Profit Before Income
Taxes 69,53¢ 8.5 59,87¢ 8.0 59,89( 8.1
Income Tax Expense 18,88 2.3 19,64° 2.6 18,30¢ 2.5
Net Earnings $ 50,65: 6.2 $ 40,23 53 $ 41,58 5.6
Net Earnings per Dilutec
Share 2.7C $ 2.14 $ 2.1¢

Consolidated Financial Results

Net Earnings for 2014 were $50.7 million , or $2¥ diluted shar
compared to $40.2 million , or $2.14 per dilutedrghfor 2013 Net Earning
were impacted by:

« Anincrease in Net Sales of 9.3%rimarily due to increased sale:
strategic accounts and through distribution, cargthdemand for ne
products, gains in commercial, industrial and oatdequipment, ar
selling list price increases, typically in the rangf 2 percent to
percent in most geographies, in March 2014.

A 40basis point decrease in Gross Profit margin dusrting sales -
strategic accounts and through distribution thadtéo have lowe
gross profit margins and also costs related tonfirand trainin
additional manufacturing employees to support thghér levels c
production.

* A decrease in S&A Expense as a percentage ofSHiets of 5Masit
points due to continued cost controls and improwgaerating
efficiencies, somewhat offset by investments inedir sale:
distribution and marketing to build organic sales.

Net Earnings for 2013 were $40.2 million , or $2det diluted shar
compared to $41.6 million , or $2.18 per dilutedrghfor 2012 Net Earning

were impacted by:

¢« Anincrease in Net Sales of 1.8%, primarily duenttreased sales
industrial equipment and high demand for newlyddtrced produc
that were somewhat offset by lower sales of ciganlng equipment.

e A 70 basis point decrease in Gross Profit margia thuchanges
selling channel mix and mix of products sold.

* A decrease in S&A Expense as a percentage of Nes 8470 bas
points due to continued tight cost controls and rowpd operatin
efficiencies.

e Two restructuring actions totaling $3.0 milligpretax) during 201
or 40 basis points as a percentage of Net Sales.

« A $0.6 million tax benefit related to the 2012 R&&Xx credit that we
retroactively enacted in January 2013.
Net Sales
In 2014 , consolidated Net Sales were $822.0 millian increase -

9.3% as compared to 2013 . Consolidated Net Saége ®752.0 millionin
2013, an increase of 1.8% as compared to 2012 .

The components of the consolidated Net Sales chdoge2014 as
compared to 2013, and 2013 as compared to 20&2e, as follows:

Growth Elements 2014 v. 2013 2013 v. 2012
Organic Growth:

Volume 9.3% 1.8%
Price 1.0% 1.0%
Organic Growth 10.3% 2.8%
Foreign Currency (1.0%) (1.0%)
Total 9.3% 1.8%

The 9.3% increase in consolidated Net Sales fod 21 compared
2013 was primarily due to sales volume increases tdegi@ accounts al
through distribution, continued demand for new mieid such as the T17 ric
scrubber and gains in commercial, industrial andl@ar equipment. Sales
new products introduced since the 2012 fourth guavere 12% of equipme
sales in 2014. The impact from direct foreign cocsetranslation exchan
was approximately neutral to Net Sales for the filee months of 2014, a
was approximately 3.0% unfavorable in the 2014 tfoguarter primarily du
to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar throughtiig quarter, resulting in
2014 full year impact that was approximately 1.0ffavorable. We expeci
larger unfavorable foreign currency impact in 2015.

The 1.8% increase in consolidated Net Sales foi3 285 compared
2012 was primarily due to sales volume increases tduincreased sales
industrial equipment and demand for newly introdlpeoducts.

The following table sets forth annual Net Salepgrating segment a
the related percentage change from the prior yearthousands, exce
percentages):

2014 % 2013 % 2012
Americas $ 569,00: 10.€6 $ 514,54 4.7 $ 491,66:
Europe, Middle East and
Africa 165,68t 5.4 157,20¢ (5.9 166,20t



Asia Pacific

87,29:

8.€

80,25¢

)

81,111

Total

$ 821,98

9.5

$ 752,01:

1.

$ 738,98(
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Americas — In 2014 , Americas Net Sales increased 10.6%560.(
million as compared with $514.5 million in 2013'he primary driver of tt
increase in Net Sales was attributable to hightasst strategic accour

including sales of scrubbers in North America, bbers equipped with ec-

H20 technology and walkehind burnishers. Unfavorable direct fore
currency translation exchange effects decreasedSHlets by approximate
1.0%.

In 2013, Americas Net Sales increased 4.7% to $6Million as
compared with $491.7 million in 2012. The primamvdr of the increase
Net Sales was attributable to higher sales of egeig in North Americi
including scrubbers equipped with B2O technology and sweepers,
continued growth in Latin America. Unfavorable direforeign currenc
translation exchange effects decreased Net Salapgrpximately 1.0%.

Europe, Middle East and Africa — Europe, Middle East and Afri
(“EMEA") Net Sales in 2014 increased 5.4% to $16®illion as compared
2013 Net Sales of $157.2 milliorAn organic sales increase of approxime
4.4% was primarily due to higher sales of outdapriement, including stror
sales of 500ze lithium-ion battepowered sweepers. Favorable direct for
currency exchange effects increased EMEA Net Salespproximately 1.0t
in 2014 .

EMEA Net Sales in 2013 decreased 5.4% to $157.Romihs compare
to 2012 Net Sales of $166.2 million. An organic esaldecrease
approximately 7.4% was primarily due to decreasesales of city cleanir
equipment due to tight municipal spending in Europemewhat offset t
increased sales to strategic accounts. Favorabikectdforeign currenc
exchange effects increased EMEA Net Sales by appet&ly 2.0% in 2013.

Asia Pacific — Asia Pacific Net Sales in 2014 increased 8.89$89.:
million as compared to 2013 Net Sales of $80.3iomll An organic sale
increase of approximately 12.8% was primarily dug gtrong sale
performance in China, Japan, Southeast Asia ané&dynfavorable dire
foreign currency exchange effects decreased Nes3sl approximately 4.0
in 2014 .

Asia Pacific Net Sales in 2013 decreased 1.1% t0.3%8&nillion a
compared to 2012 Net Sales of $81.1 million. Anamig sales increase
approximately 4.4% was primarily due to increasates of equipment
China and also sales growth in Australia and Jalgafavorable direct foreic
currency exchange effects decreased Net Sales pyoxamately 5.5% i
2013.

Gross Profit

Gross Profit margin was 42.9% in 2014 , a decre&d® basis points ¢
compared to 2013Gross Profit margin in 2014 was unfavorably impddoy
stronger sales to sales channels that tend tolbeaxs gross margins and a
costs related to hiring and training additional ofasturing employees a
temporary workers to support the higher levels mfdpction, including th
continued ramp up to meet the growing demand far pr@ducts.

Gross Profit margin was 43.3% in 2013, a decre&S® dasis points
compared to 2012. Gross Profit margin in 2013 waaworably impacted t
changes in selling channel mix and the mix of posigold.

Operating Expenses

Research and Development Expense R&D Expense decreaséki.l
million , or 3.6% , in 2014 as compared to 2013 a percentage of Net Sa
2014 R&D Expense decreased 50 basis points to 8162014 from 4.1%n
the prior year primarily due to the timing of newogduct developme
projects. We continued to invest in developing wative new products fi
our traditional core business, as well as our Oblisiness.

R&D Expense increased $1.3 million, or 4.3%, in 2@k compared
2012. As a percentage of Net Sales, 2013 R&D Expamzeased 10 ba
points to 4.1% in 2013 from 4.0% in the prior yeR&D Expense increased
2013 as we made additional investments in devejppimovative ne\
products for our traditional core business, as aglbur Orbio business.

Selling and Administrative Expense— S&A Expense increased
$17.9 million , or 7.7% , in 2014 compared to 2018 a percentage of M
Sales, 2014 S&A Expense decreased 50 basis poi38.5%from 31.0% i
2013 due to continued cost controls and improvedraimg efficiencie:
somewhat offset by investments in direct salegridigion and marketing
build organic sales that unfavorably impacted S&gp&nse.

S&A Expense decreased by $1.1 million, or 0.5%2013 compared
2012. As a percentage of Net Sales, 2013 S&A Expelesreased 70 ba
points to 31.0% due to continued tight cost costienhd improved operati
efficiencies. Included in the lower S&A Expense idgr 2013 were tw
restructuring actions totaling $3.0 million, or B@sis points as a percentag
Net Sales

Other Income (Expense)

Interest Income — Interest Income was $0.3 million in 2014 decreas
of $0.1 million from 2013 The decrease between 2014 and 2013 was |
decreases in interest rates on cash invested.

Interest Income was $0.4 million in 2013, a deceezfs$0.7 million fron
2012. The decrease between 2013 and 2012 was digcteases in inter
rates on cash invested.

Interest Expense — Interest Expense was $1.7 million in 2044
compared to $1.8 million in 2013This decrease was primarily due to lo
interest rates on long-term adjustable rate borrgsui

Interest Expense was $1.8 million in 2013 as coeghb&o $2.5 million il
2012. This decrease was primarily due to lowerr@gierates on lontgrnm
adjustable rate borrowings.

Net Foreign Currency Transaction Losses -Net Foreign Currenc
Transaction Losses were $0.7 million in 2014 anti320

Net Foreign Currency Transaction Losses were $0lifomin 2013 a
compared to Losses of $1.4 million in 2012. Theofable decrease from |
prior year was due to fluctuations in foreign coog rates in the norm
course of business.

Income Taxes

The overall effective income tax rate was 27.2%8%2 and 30.6% i
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The tax expense for 2013 included a $0.1 million hanefit associatt
with restructuring charges of $3.0 million. The texpense also includec
first quarter discrete tax benefit of $0.6 millidar the enactment of tl
Federal R&D credit retroactively impacting the tgar ended December
2012. Excluding these special items, the 2013 diveparate would have be
32.3%.

The decrease in the 2014 overall effective tax estecompared to t
prior year, excluding the effect of the 2013 dime charges, was primar
related to the mix in our full year taxable earmsifgyy country and favorat
settlements on prior years' tax positions.

The tax expense for 2012 included a $2.0 million ltanefit associatt
with an international entity restructuring which tewdally decreased tl
overall effective tax rate. Excluding this tax bfindghe overall effective te
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We do not have any plans to repatriate the unbiged earnings of non-

U.S. subsidiaries. Any repatriation from foreigrbsidiaries that would res
in incremental U.S. taxation is not being consideteis management's bel
that reinvesting these earnings outside the U.$hdsmost efficient use
capital.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity — Cash and Cash Equivalents totaled $93.0 millain
December 31, 2014 , as compared to $81.0 millicof &ecember 31, 2013
Cash and Cash Equivalents held by our foreign didy#@s totaled $15
million as of December 31, 2014 as compared to $13.4 million as
December 31, 2013Wherever possible, cash management is centradine
intercompany financing is used to provide workirgpital to subsidiaries
needed. Our current ratio was 2.4 as of Decemhe2@l4 andDecember 3:
2013 , and our working capital was $201.5 millionda$183.8 million,
respectively.

Our Debt-to-Capital ratio was 9.1% as of Decemider2®14, compare
with 10.8% as of December 31, 201Qur capital structure was comprise:
$28.1 million of Debt and $280.7 million of Sharéders’ Equity as o
December 31, 2014 .

Cash Flow Summary — Cash provided by (used in) our operat
investing and financing activities is summarizedd®ws (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012

Operating Activities $ 59,36: $ 59,81+ $ 47,56¢
Investing Activities:

Purchases of Property, Plant and

Equipment, Net of Disposals (19,29;)  (14,65%H (14,599

Acquisitions of Businesses, Net of

Cash Acquired — (750 (750

Proceeds from Sale of Business 1,41¢ 4,261 1,01¢

Decrease (Increase) in Restricted

Cash 6 (2593 3,08¢
Financing Activities (28,039  (21,49H  (34,93)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on
Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,476 122 20¢
Net Increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents $ 11,97¢ $ 27,04« $ 1,601

Operating Activities — Cash provided by operating activities vi9.<
million in 2014 , $59.8 million in 2013 and $47.6llion in 2012 . In 2014
cash provided by operating activities was drivemarily by $50.7 millionof
Net Earnings and increases in Accounts Payable whateoffset by increas
in Inventories and Receivables. The increase iertories was in support
higher sales levels and the launches of many nedugts. The increase
Receivables was due to higher sales levels, thietyaof terms offered ar
mix of business. Cash provided by operating adtivitvas $ 0.5 milliotower
in 2014 as compared to 2013 primarily due to ingesayear over year
working capital to support the growth in sales.

In 2013, cash provided by operating activities veliven by $40.
million of Net Earnings and an increase in AccouPdyable, somewhat off:
by increases in Inventories and Receivables. Ttrease in Inventories was
support of the launches of many new products. Titeease in Receivab
was due to a variety of terms offered and mix daibess. Cash provided
operating activities was $12.2 million higher in130as compared to 20
primarily due to a $15.0 million discretionary cobtition made to the U.
Pension Plan in 2012 and there were no contribsitivade in 2013.

For 2014, we used operating profit and operating profit giraras ke

Two metrics used by management to evaluate hovetefédy we utilize
our net assets are “Accounts Receivable Days Salgstanding” (“DSOY
and “Days Inventory on Hand” (“DIOH"), on a firsti first-out (“FIFO”)
basis. The metrics are calculated on a rollingehr®nth basis in order
more readily reflect changing trends in the busind$hese metrics for t
quarters ended December 31 were as follows (in)days

2014 2013 2012
DSO 62 61 60
DIOH 84 81 78

DSO increased 1 day in 2014 as compared to poib3arily due to th
variety of terms offered and mix of business havandarger unfavorab
impact than the favorable trend of continued pigactnanagement of o
receivables by enforcing tighter credit limits aoohtinuing to successfu
collect past due balances.

DIOH increased 3 days in 2014 as compared to Z0iBarily due t
increased levels of inventory in support of higbales levels and the launc
of many new products somewhat offset by progrems finventory reductic
initiatives.

Investing Activities — Net cash used for investing activities wiis7.¢
million in 2014 , $11.4 million in 2013 and $11.2llion in 2012. Net capite
expenditures were $19.3 million during 2014 as carag to $14.7 milliorin
2013 and $14.6 million in 2012 . Our 20tépital expenditures includ
investments in tooling related to new product depeient, and manufacturi
and information technology process improvementqutsj. Proceeds from S
of Business provided $1.4 million in 2014 and $4i8ion in 2013 .

Capital expenditures in 2013 included investmentsobling related t
new product development, and manufacturing andrimftion technolog
process improvement projects. Capital expenditimre2012 included toolin
related to new product development, manufacturinguipgnent an
information technology process improvement projects

Financing Activities — Net cash used for financing activities w&28.(
million in 2014 , $21.5 million in 2013 and $34.9lllon in 2012 . In 2014,
payments of dividends used $14.5 million , paymenfisong-Term Debt use
$2.0 million and payments of Short-Term Debt uséds $million . In 2013
payments of dividends used $13.2 million and paymeh LongTerm Deb
used $1.1 million, partially offset by Shaferm Borrowings of $1.5 milliol
In 2012, payments of dividends and Lofigrm Debt used $12.8 million a
$3.0 million, respectively. Our annual cash dividgrayout increased for t
43 " consecutive year to $0.78 per share in 2054 increase of $0.06 |
share over 2013 .

Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock gee$& millionin
2014 , $8.3 million in 2013 and $4.2 million in 201

On April 25, 2012, the Board of Directors authodzbe repurchase
1,000,000 shares of our common stock. At DecembelB14, there wer
405,569 remaining shares authorized for repurchase.

There were 225,034 shares repurchased in 2014 einoplen marke
434,118 shares repurchased in 2013 and 621,34@sshegpurchased duri
2012, at average repurchase prices of $62.64 dafad, $51.04 during 20
and $40.78 during 2012. Our Credit Agreement wRiMdrgan Chase Ba
limits the payment of dividends and repurchasestadk to amounts rangi
from $50.0 million to $75.0 million per fiscal yebased on our leverage r¢
after giving effect to such payments for the lifale agreement.



indicators of financial performance and the primanyetrics fo
performance-based incentives.
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Indebtedness— As of December 31, 2014we had committed lines
credit totaling approximately $125.0 millieand uncommitted lines of cre
totaling approximately $87.4 million . There werE03 millionin outstandin
borrowings under our JPMorgan facility (describedoly) and$18.0 millior
in outstanding borrowings under our Prudentiallfgc{described below) as
December 31, 2014 In addition, we had stand alone letters of crexd
approximately $2.4 milliomutstanding and bank guarantees in the amot
approximately $0.2 million Commitment fees on unused lines of credi
the year ended December 31, 2014 were $0.3 million

Our most restrictive covenants are part of our 2Qtédit Agreemer
with JPMorgan (as defined below), which are theesanwvenants in our Sh
Agreement (as defined below) with Prudential (afinéd below), and requi
us to maintain an indebtedness to EBITDA ratio of greater thar3.00 to :
and to maintain an EBITDA to interest expense rafino less thai.50 to :
as of the end of each quarter. As of December 314 2our indebtedness
EBITDA ratio was 0.34 to &and our EBITDA to interest expense ratio
52.86t0 1.

Credit Facilities

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

On April 25, 2013, we entered into Amendment Néo bur 2011 Crec
Agreement which amends the Credit Agreement, dasedf May 5, 201
with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A. (“JPMorgard$, administrative agent ¢
collateral agent, U.S. Bank National Associatios sgndication agent, We
Fargo Bank, National Association, and RBS CitizeM$,A., as co-
documentation agents, and the Lenders (includifgod§an) from time t
time party thereto (the “2011 Credit Agreementdnder the original term
the 2011 Credit Agreement provides us and certhoupforeign subsidiarie
access to a senior unsecured credit facility téy 5, 2016, in the amount «
$125.0 million , with an option to expand by up$®2.5 millionto a total o
$187.5 million. Borrowings may be denominated in U.S. Dollarscertair
other currencies. The 2011 Credit Agreement costar5100.0 millior
sublimit on borrowings by foreign subsidiaries.

Amendment No. 1 to the 2011 Credit Agreement ppialty provides th
following changes to the 2011 Credit Agreement:

e extends the maturity date of the 2011 Credit Agreet toMarch 1
2018 ;

e changes the fees for committed funds under the 2Ctédi
Agreement to an annual rate ranging from 0.20%36%, dependin
on our leverage ratio;

e changes the per annum interest rate on Eurocurrbaopwings ti
adjusted LIBOR plus an additional spread of 1.30861t90% ,
depending on our leverage ratio;

e changes the Alternate Base Rate at which borrowbegs interest to
rate per annum equal to the greatest of (a) theepmate, (b) tr
federal funds rate plus 0.508hd (c) the adjusted LIBOR rate fo
one month period plus 1.0%plus, in any such case, an additic
spread of 0.30% to 0.90% , depending on our leweratjo; and

e changes related to new or recently revised finamegulations

The 2011 Credit Agreement gives the Lenders a pleafg65%of the
stock of certain first tier foreign subsidiariedielTobligations under the 2C
Credit Agreement are also guaranteed by certaiouoffirst tier domest
subsidiaries.

The 2011 Credit Agreement contains customary reptasons
warranties and covenants, including but not limitedcovenants restrictil
our ability to incur indebtedness and liens and geeor consolidate wi
another entity. Further, the 2011 Credit Agreememttains the followin
covenants:

e acovenant requiring us to maintain an indebtedt®&BITDA ratic
as of the end of each quarter of not greater th2d® 1 ;

e a covenant requiring us to maintain an EBITDA ttefast expen:
ratio as of the end of each quarter of no less&adto 1 ;

a covenant restricting us from paying dividendsepurchasing stos
if, after giving effect to such payments, our lege ratio is great
than 2.00 to 1, in such case limiting such payments to an an
ranging from $50.0 million to $75.0 millioduring any fiscal yei
based on our leverage ratio after giving effecuoh payments; and

e a covenant restricting our ability to make acqidss, if, after givin
proforma effect to such acquisition, our leverageoraigreater the
2.75t0 1, in such case limiting acquisitions 253 million .

As of December 31, 2014we were in compliance with all covene
under the Credit Agreement. There was $10.0 million outstandin
borrowings under this facility at December 31, 20%4th a weighted avera
interest rate of 1.46% .

Prudential Investment Management, Inc.

On July 29, 2009, we entered into a Private ShglfeAment (theShel
Agreement”) with Prudential Investment Managemént, (“Prudential”)anc
Prudential affiliates from time to time party theereThe Shelf Agreeme
provides us and our subsidiaries access to an undted, senior secure
maximum aggregate principal amount of $80.0 millafndebt capital. Tt
Shelf Agreement contains representations, warmsuatiel covenants, includi
but not limited to covenants restricting our apilio incur indebtedness ¢
liens and to merge or consolidate with anothertyenti

On May 5, 2011, we entered into Amendment No. &uoPrivate She
Agreement (the “Amendment”).

The Amendment principally provides the followingaciges to the Shi
Agreement:

« elimination of the security interest in our perdomaoperty an
subsidiaries;

*« an amendment to the maximum leverage ratio tayreater thar3.0C
to 1 for any period ending on or after March 31120

« an amendment to our restriction regarding the paymokdividends ¢
repurchase of stock to restrict us from paying dbwds c
repurchasing stock if, after giving effect to suphyments, ot
leverage ratio is greater than 2.00 tq th such case limiting su
payments to an amount ranging from $50.0 millior%.0 millior
during any fiscal year based on our leverage &dtier giving effect t
such payments; and

« an amendment to Permitted Acquisitions restricting ability to mak
acquisitions, if, after giving préerma effect to such acquisition, ¢
leverage ratio is greater than 2.75 to, lin such case limitir
acquisitions to $25.0 million .

On July 24, 2012, we entered into Amendment Na @ur Private She
Agreement (“Amendment No. 2")hich amends the Shelf Agreement.
principal change effected by Amendment No. 2 i&&ension of the Issuar
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Period for Shelf Notes under the Shelf Agreemehe Tssuance Peri
now expires on July 24, 2015 .




As of December 31, 2014 , there was $18.0 millianoutstandin
borrowings under this facility; the $8.0 milli®eries A notes issued in Ma
2011 with a fixed interest rate of 4.00% and a sexear term seriall
maturing from 2014 to 2018 ; and the $10.0 mill®eries B notes issued
June 2011 with a fixed interest rate of 4.10% antlOayearterm seriall
maturing from 2015 to 2021 . The first payment @f@million on Series ,
notes was made during the first quarter of 2014.Wiee in compliance wi
all covenants of the Shelf Agreement as of Decer8heP014 .

The Royal Bank of Scotland Citizens, N.A.

On September 14, 2010, we entered into an overthaifity with The
Royal Bank of Scotland Citizens, N.A. in the amoah®.0 million Euros o
approximately $2.4 million There was no balance outstanding on this fa
as of December 31, 2014 .

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited, Shanghai Branch

On June 20, 2012, we entered into a banking faailith the HSB(
Bank (China) Company Limited, Shanghai Branch ie #imount of$5.C
million . During the first quarter of 2014, we repaid poaxd borrowings und
this facility amounting to $1.5 million and, as Becember 31, 2014 there
were no outstanding borrowings on this facility.

Collateralized Borrowings

Collateralized borrowings represent deferred splexeeds on certe
leasing transactions with thigghkrty leasing companies. These transactior
accounted for as borrowings, with the related aseapitalized as proper
plant and equipment and depreciated straight-luge the lease term.

Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations outstanding are primargjated to sale-
leaseback transactions with thipdsty leasing companies whereby we sel
manufactured equipment to the leasing company a&adel it back. Tt
equipment covered by these leases is rented t@usiomers over the le:
term.

Contractual Obligations — Our contractual obligations as of Decen
31, 2014 , are summarized by period due in thevidiig table (in thousands):

Less More
Than 1 1-3 3-5 Than 5
Total Year Years Years Years

Long-term debf® $ 28,000 $ 3,42¢ $ 6,857 $ 14,857 $ 2,85i
Interest payments
on long-term
debt® 2,457 787 1,157 39¢€ 117
Capital leases 13C 13C — — —
Interest payments
on capital leases 8 8 — — —
Retirement benef
plans® 1,47¢ 1,47¢ _ _ _
Deferred
compensation
arrangement® 7,66( 1,01¢ 847 70C 5,09¢
Operating
leases? 18,36¢ 7,73¢ 7,60¢ 2,471 554
Purchase
obligations® 61,61¢ 61,61¢ — — —
Other® 9,53 9,53 — — —
Total contractual
obligations $ 129,25( $ 85,73 $ 16,46¢ $ 18,42« $ 8,627

Q) Longterm debt represents borrowings through our C
Agreement with JPMorgan and our Shelf Agreemenh vRtudential. Ot
Credit Agreement with JPMorgan does not have sigecifepayment term
therefore, repayment is due upon expiration of dgeeement on March
2018. Interest payments on our Credit Agreemeneveaiculated using t
December 31, 2014IBOR rate based on the assumption that the pral
would be repaid in full upon the expiration of thgreement. Our borrowin
under our Shelf Agreement with Prudential have @ 3@ year terms, seria
maturing from 2014 to 2021 with fixed interest st 4.00% and 4.10¢
respectively.

2) Our retirement benefit plans, as described in Nbteof the
Consolidated Financial Statements, require us t&enwntributions to tt
plans from time to time. Our plan obligations tethI$10.5 million as «
December 31, 2014Contributions to the various plans are dependpnot :
number of factors including the market performaotplan assets, if any, a
future changes in interest rates, which impactabiarial measurement
plan obligations. As a result, we have only inclideur 2015 expect
contribution in the contractual obligations table.

3) The unfunded deferred compensation arrangementsriog
certain current and retired management employdeatetb$7.7 million as
December 31, 20140ur estimated distributions in the contractudigations
table are based upon a number of assumptions ingliermination dates a
participant distribution elections.

(4) Operating lease commitments consist primarily dicef anc
warehouse facilities, vehicles and office equipmentiscussed in Note 13
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(5) Purchase obligations include all known open purehaslers
contractual purchase commitments and contractudigatlons as ¢
December 31, 2014 .

(6) Other obligations include collateralized borrowiragsdiscusse
in Note 8 of the Consolidated Financial Statemesmtsl residual vall
guarantees as discussed in Note 13 of the Contadidinancial Statements.

Total contractual obligations exclude our grosseuagnized tax benef
of $3.0 million and accrued interest and penalt¢s$0.6 million as o
December 31, 2014We expect to make cash outlays in the futuretedl&
uncertain tax positions. However, due to the uadety of the timing of futur
cash flows, we are unable to make reasonably teliestimates of the peri
of cash settlement, if any, with the respectivangoauthorities. For furth
information related to unrecognized tax benefiteg sNote 14 of tt
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Table of Contents
Newly Issued Accounting Guidance

Revenues from Contracts with Custornr

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards rBoassuec
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-B@yvenue from Contrac
with Customers (Topic 606) This ASU will replace all existing reven
recognition standards and significantly expanddiselosure requirements f
revenue arrangements. This guidance requires aty ot recognize th
amount of revenue to which it expects to be ewtitfer the transfer c
promised goods or services to customers. This gu&arovides a fivetep
analysis of transactions to determine when and hewenue is recognize
Other major provisions include capitalization ofrteé contract cost:
consideration of time value of money in the tratisacprice, and allowin
estimates of variable consideration to be recoghtzefore contingencies &
resolved in certain circumstances. This guidanc® akquires enhanc
disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timingj amcertainty of revent
and cash flows arising from an entity's contractsh wcustomers. Th
provisions of ASU 20149 are effective for annual periods beginning ¢
December 15, 2016, including interim periods witliat reporting perioc
and early application is not permitted. The newndéad may be adoptt
retrospectively for all periods presented, or addptusing a modifie
retrospective approach. Under the retrospectiveoagp, the fiscal 2016 ai
2015 financial statements would be adjusted t@cefthe effects of applyir
the new standard on those periods. Under the neadiéitrospective approac
the new standard would only be applied for theq@ebeginning January
2017 to new contracts and those contracts that@rget complete at Janue
1, 2017, with a cumulative catelp adjustment recorded to beginning retai
earnings for existing contracts that still requaerformance. Management
currently evaluating the methods of adoption alldwg the new standard a
the effect the standard is expected to have onfinancial statements ar
related disclosures.

No other new accounting pronouncements issued gl@®14 but not ye
effective have had, or are expected to have, arfabi@pact on our results
operations or financial position.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are basetherselection an
application of accounting principles generally qated in the United States
America, which require us to make estimates andnagons about futur
events that affect the amounts reported in our Glateed Financis
Statements and the accompanying notes. Our signifiaccounting policie
are described in Note 1 of the Consolidated Firn8tatements. Futu
events and their effects cannot be determined witisolute certainty
Therefore, the determination of estimates requinesexercise of judgmer
Actual results could differ from those estimates] any such differences m
be material to the Consolidated Financial StatemeWe believe that tt
following policies may involve a higher degree ofiggment and complexity
their application and represent the critical actimgn policies used in th
preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statesidhtifferent assumptior
or conditions were to prevail, the results couldchimerially different from ou
reported results.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — We record a reserve for accot
receivable that are potentially uncollectible. Ansinlerable amount
judgment is required in assessing the realizatfchase receivables includi
the current creditworthiness of each customer ataded aging of the padtie
balances. In order to assess the collectabilitthe$e receivables, we perfc
ongoing credit evaluations of our customefisiancial condition. Throug
these evaluations, we may become aware of a situathere a customer
not be able to meet its financial obligations dweéterioration of its financi
viability, credit ratings or bankruptcy. The resemequirements are based
the best facts available to us and are reevalumteldadjusted as additiol
information becomes available. Our reserves are aissed on amour
determined by using percentages applied to trad=ivables. The:s
percentages are determined by a variety of fagtetsding, but not limited t«
current economic trends, historical payment anddedat writeoff experience
We are not able to predict changes in the finaremaldition of our custome
and if circumstances related to these customeevidedte, our estimates
the recoverability of accounts receivable couldnaerially affected and v
may be required to record additional allowancestehtively, if mon
allowances are provided than are ultimately reqljivee may reverse a porti
of such provisions in future periods based on titaa collection experienc
Bad debt writesffs as a percentage of Net Sales were approxiyn@t&bo ir
2014 , 0.2% in 2013 and 0.3% in 2012 . As of Decandi, 2014, we ha
$3.9 million reserved against Accounts Receivabtelbubtful accounts.

Inventory Reserves— We value our inventory at the lower of the cos
inventory or fair market value through the estdbtient of a reserve f
excess, slow moving and obsolete inventory. In sssg the ultimai
realization of inventories, we are required to mak#gments as to futu
demand requirements compared with inventory leyRserve requiremel
are developed by comparing our inventory leveloto projected dema
requirements based on historical demand, marketittons and technologic
and product life cycle changes. It is possible #matincrease in our rese
may be required in the future if there are sigaificdeclines in demand -
certain products. This reserve creates a new emss for these products an
considered permanent. As of December 31, 20Me had $3.3 millio
reserved against Inventories.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of cost over thevidue o
net assets of businesses acquired and is allotateagr reporting units at t
time of the acquisition. We analyze Goodwill onaamual basis and when
event occurs or circumstances change that may eetthacfair value of one
our reporting units below its carrying amount. Aodwill impairment los
occurs if the carrying amount of a reporting unitjoodwill exceeds its fe
value.

We performed an analysis of qualitative factordeétermine whether it
more likely than not that the fair value of a repar unit is less than i
carrying amount as a basis for determining wheithisrnecessary to perfoi
the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment tebhe first step of the two-
step model is used as an indicator to identifyh#rée is potential goodw
impairment. If the first step indicates there mayam impairment, the secc
step is performed which measures the amount oftloelwill impairment, i
any. We perform our goodwill impairment analysisodyear end and use ¢
judgment to develop assumptions for the discountesth flow model that v
use, if necessary. Management assumptions inchugedsting revenues ¢
margins, estimating capital expenditures, deprieciatamortization ar
discount rates.

16




If our goodwill impairment testing resulted in orm@ more of ou
reporting units’ carrying amount exceeding its fair value, we wouldte
down our reporting unitstarrying amount to its fair value and would rec
an impairment charge in our results of operationsthe period suc
determination is made. Subsequent reversal of giliddwpairment charges
not permitted. Each of our reporting units werelyred for impairment as
December 31, 2014nd based upon our analysis, the estimated fairesab
our reporting units substantially exceeded theiryilag amounts. We h
Goodwill of $18.4 million as of December 31, 2014 .

Warranty Reserves— We record a liability for warranty claims at
time of sale. The amount of the liability is basadthe trend in the historic
ratio of claims to net sales, the historical lengthime between the sale ¢
resulting warranty claim, new product introducticared other factors. Futt
claims experience could be materially differentirprior results because
the introduction of new, more complex products,hange in our warran
policy in response to industry trends, competitiwrother external forces,
manufacturing changes that could impact productityudn the event w
determine that our current or future product repaid replacement co
exceed our estimates, an adjustment to these essevould be charged
earnings in the period such determination is matlarranty expense as
percentage of Net Sales was 1.3% in 2014 , 1.42018 and 1.7% in 2012
As of December 31, 2014 , we had $9.7 millreserved for future estimat
warranty costs.

Income Taxes— We are required to estimate our income taxes ih e{
the jurisdictions in which we operate. This processlves estimating o
actual current tax obligations based on expectednie, statutory tax ral
and tax planning opportunities in the various pidgtions. We also establi
reserves for uncertain tax matters that are comiplerature and uncertain
to the ultimate outcome. Although we believe that @x return positions &
fully supportable, we consider our ability to ulétely prevail in defendir
these matters when establishing these reservesdjist our reserves in lic
of changing facts and circumstances, such as thgngd of a tax audit. W
believe that our current reserves are adequate ekenywthe ultimate outcor
may differ from our estimates am$sumptions and could impact the inc
tax expense reflected in our Consolidated StatesrarEarnings.

Tax law requires certain items to be included intax return at differel
times than the items are reflected in our resuitsp@rations. Some of the
differences are permanent, such as expenses thabadeductible in our t
returns, and some differences will reverse overtisuch as depreciati
expense on property, plant and equipment. Thespaery differences resi
in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which areluded within oL
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Deferred tax asseerally represent iter
that can be used as a tax deduction or credit itaoureturns in future yee
but have already been recorded as an expense i@angolidated Stateme
of Operations. We assess the likelihood that odierded tax assets will |
recovered from future taxable income, and, basechamagemens’ judgmen
to the extent we believe that recovery is not nlidedy than not, we establi
a valuation reserve against those deferred taxsastbe deferred tax as
valuation allowance could be materially differerdgrh actual results becat
of changes in the mix of future taxable income, ridationship between bo
and taxable income and our tax planning strategieaf December 31, 2014
a valuation allowance of $5.7 million was recordeghinst foreign tax lo
carryforwards, foreign tax credit carryforwards atate credit carryforwards.

Cautionary Factors Relevant to

Information

ForwardLooking

This annual report on Form 10-K, including “Managent’s Discussio
and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultsQgerations”in Item 2
contain certain statements that are consideredvéit-looking statements”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 199!
Forward-looking statements generally can be idiedtiby the use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expett,intend,” “estimate,”
“anticipate,” “believe,” “project,” or “continue”or similar words or tr
negative thereof. These statements do not relagittly historical or currel
facts and provide current expectations of forecakfsiture events. Any su
expectations or forecasts of future events areesultp a variety of factol
Particular risks and uncertainties presently faciagnclude:

e Competition in our busine:

* Relative strength of the U.S. dollar, which affethe cost of ot
materials and products purchased and sold intemelty.

«  Geopolitical and economic uncertainty throughoetworld

Ability to attract, retain and develop key persdrened create effecti
succession planning strategies.

e Ability to successfully upgrade, evolve and protear informatiol
technology systems.

¢ Fluctuations in the cost or availability of raw mdls and purchas
components.

« Ability to effectively manage organizational chas
¢ Ability to comply with laws and regulatior
¢ Occurrence of a significant business interrup

¢ Ability to develop and commercialize new innovatigeoducts an
services.

« Unforeseen product liability claims or product duyaissues

We caution that forwartboking statements must be considered care
and that actual results may differ in material wayse to risks ar
uncertainties both known and unknown. Informatitvwt factors that cou
materially affect our results can be found in Raftem 1A - Risk Factor:
Shareholders, potential investors and other reaatersirged to consider th
factors in evaluating forwartboking statements and are cautioned not to
undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.

We undertake no obligation to update or revise forywarddooking
statement, whether as a result of new informafioture events or otherwis
Investors are advised to consult any further d@ales by us in our filing
with the Securities and Exchange Commission arathier written statemer
on related subjects. It is not possible to antteipar foresee all risk facto
and investors should not consider any list of siaciors to be an exhaust
or complete list of all risks or uncertainties.
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ITEM 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Abou
Market Risk

Commodity Risk — We are subject to exposures resulting from potk
cost increases related to our purchase of raw matteor other produ
components. We do not use derivative commodityrinsents to manage ¢
exposures to changes in commodity prices such es, iil, gas, lead a
other commodities.

Various factors beyond our control affect the prige oil and gas
including but not limited to worldwide and domessigpplies of oil and ge
political instability or armed conflict in ojproducing regions, the price ¢
level of foreign imports, the level of consumer dew, the price ar
availability of alternative fuels, domestic anddign governmental regulatic
weatherrelated factors and the overall economic envirortméfe purchas
petroleumrelated component parts for use in our manufaguoiperations. |
addition, our freight costs associated with shigpamd receiving product a
sales and service vehicle fuel costs are impaggetlbtuations in the cost
oil and gas.

Increases in worldwide demand and other factoescathe price for lea
steel and related products. We do not maintain rerentory of raw c
fabricated steel or batteries in excess of neam production requirements.
a result, increases in the price of lead or stael significantly increase t
cost of our lead- and steel-based raw materialamponent parts.

During the first part of 2014, our raw materialsdaother purchast
component costs were unfavorably impacted by conitmqutices althoug
we were able to somewhat mitigate these highesasish pricing actions ar
cost reduction activities. We continue to focus mitigating the risk c
continued future raw material or other product comgnmt cost increas
through product pricing, negotiations with our versl and cost reducti
actions. The success of these efforts will depgrmhwour ability to increa:
our selling prices in a competitive market and ability to achieve co
savings. If the commodity prices increase signiftgaand we are not able
offset the increases with higher selling prices, msults may be unfavoral
impacted in 2015.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk— Due to the global nature of ¢
operations, we are subject to exposures resultiogn fforeign currenc
exchange fluctuations in the normal course of lrgsnOur primary exchar
rate exposures are with the Euro, Australian anda@an dollars, Britis
pound, Japanese yen, Chinese yuan and Brazilikmgamst the U.S. dolle
The direct financial impact of foreign currency bange includes the effect
translating profits from local currencies to U.8lldrs, the impact of curren
fluctuations on the transfer of goods between querations in the Unite
States and abroad and transaction gains and Idssasdition to the dire
financial impact, foreign currency exchange hasratirect financial impax
on our results, including the effect on sales vaumithin local economies a
the impact of pricing actions taken as a resultfmkign exchange re
fluctuations.

It is not possible to determine the exact impactfakign currenc
translation changes. However, the direct effectreported net sales can
estimated. For the year ended December 31, 20the impact of foreig
currency translation resulted in an overall apprate 1% decrease
reported Net Sales. For details of the effectswfency translation on N
Sales of Tennant Company's operating segmentdiesae/7 —Management
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations.

Our objective in managing the exposure to foreigrrency fluctuation
is to minimize the earnings effects associated dtkeign exchange re
changes on certain of our foreign currenigrominated assets and liabilit
We periodically enter into various contracts, pipadly forward exchang
contracts, to protect the value of certain of arefgn currencydenominate
assets and liabilities. The gains and losses osetlentracts genera
approximate changes in the value of the relatedtsigsd liabilities. We hi
forward exchange contracts outstanding in the natimmounts of$34.¢
million and $30.3 million at the end of 2014 andl12Q respectively. Fc
further information regarding our foreign currendgrward exchanc
contracts, see Note 10 of the Consolidated FinaStéements. The potent
for material loss in fair value of foreign currenoyntracts outstanding and
related underlying exposures as of December 314 2&bm a 10% adver:
change, is unlikely due to the sheetm nature of our forward contracts. |
policy prohibits us from entering into transactidasspeculative purposes.

Other Matters —  Management regularly reviews our busit
operations with the objective of improving finarciperformance ar
maximizing our return on investment. As a resultli§ ongoing process
improve financial performance, we may incur additibrestructuring charg
in the future which, if taken, could be materiabtar financial results.
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ITEM 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Tennant Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Tennant Company and subsidiarieChgpany) as of December 31, 2014 and =
and the related consolidated statements of earndogsprehensive income, cash flows, and sharel®ldgquity for each of the years in the thyesr perio
ended December 31, 2014. In connection with ouitauwd the consolidated financial statements, wso dlave audited the financial statement schedt
included in Item 15.A.2. We also have audited tlhen@anys internal control over financial reporting as add@mber 31, 2014, based on criteria establist
Internal Control- Integrated Framework (19923sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadriee Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company
management is responsible for these consolidatedidial statements, for maintaining effective in&trcontrol over financial reporting, and for itssassme
of the effectiveness of internal control over finah reporting, included in the accompanying Mamaget’s Report on Internal Control over Finan
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an @pinon these consolidated financial statements farahcial statement schedule, and an opinion ol
Company'’s internal control over financial reportinased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBlo(United States). Those standards re
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain nealle assurance about whether the financial staisnaee free of material misstatement and whetlfiecteve
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audits of tiesolidated financial statements included examinamga tes
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diselssa the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant estimatesleniay
management, and evaluating the overall financiatestent presentation. Our audit of internal contreér financial reporting included obtaining
understanding of internal control over financigdaging, assessing the risk that a material weakegsts, and testing and evaluating the desigroaedatini
effectiveness of internal control based on the sagsk risk. Our audits also included performing sattter procedures as we considered necessary
circumstances. We believe that our audits providsaaonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @g@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregéhe reliability of financial reportir
and the preparation of financial statements foem purposes in accordance with generally acdegteounting principles. A compayinternal control ovi
financial reporting includes those policies andcedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrdscat, in reasonable detail, accurately andyfegflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets ofdhgpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatacions are recorded as necessary to permit ptéepan
financial statements in accordance with generadlyepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of the company are being made @
accordance with authorizations of management arattdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonabderance regarding prevention or timely deteati
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef¢dbmpany’s assets that could have a materialteffethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or det@isstatements. Also, projections of any evatuimati
effectiveness to future periods are subject torigliethat controls may become inadequate becausbasfges in conditions, or that the degree of campd
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all mate®spects, the financial position of Tennant Conypanc
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013tlendesults of their operations and their cash $ldar each of the years in the thrgsar period ende
December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. gengraltcepted accounting principles. Also in our aminithe accompanying financial statement sche
when considered in relation to the basic finansiatements taken as a whole, presents fairly, linmaterial respects, the information set forth ¢ire
Furthermore, in our opinion, Tennant Company maietd, in all material respects, effective interoaihtrol over financial reporting as of December 3014
based on criteria established limternal Control - Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatimhthe Treadws
Commission.

/sl KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 27, 2015
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings
TENNANT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

Years ended December 31 2014 2013 2012
Net Sales $ 821,98 $ 752,01: $ 738,98(
Cost of Sales 469,55t 426,10: 413,68
Gross Profit 352,42 325,90¢ 325,29¢
Operating Expense:
Research and Development Expense 29,43: 30,52¢ 29,26:
Selling and Administrative Expense 250,89¢ 232,97¢ 234,11«
Gain on Sale of Business — — (7849)
Total Operating Expense 280,33( 263,50! 262,59:
Profit from Operations 72,097 62,40: 62,70:
Other Income (Expense):
Interest Income 30z 39C 1,06¢
Interest Expense (1,729 (1,767 (2,517
Net Foreign Currency Transaction Losses (690 (6717) (1,409
Other (Expense) Income, Net (449 (48%) 38
Total Other Expense, Net (2,559 (2,525 (2,817
Profit Before Income Taxes 69,53¢ 59,87¢ 59,89(
Income Tax Expense 18,88 19,64 18,30¢
Net Earnings $ 50,65 $ 40,23 $ 41,58¢
Net Earnings per Share:
Basic 2.7¢ 2.2C 2.2¢
Diluted 2.7¢ 2.14 2.1¢
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:
Basic 18,217,38 18,297,37 18,544,89
Diluted 18,740,85 18,833,45 19,102,01
Cash Dividends Declared per Common Share $ 0.7¢ $ 07z % 0.6¢
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
TENNANT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
(In thousands)
Years ended December 31 2014 2013 2012
Net Earnings $ 50,65: $ 40,23  $ 41,58¢
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (10,119 (2,242 574
Pension and retiree medical benefits (5,389 12,28: (2,539
Income Taxes:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 13 (15 (25)
Pension and retiree medical benefits 1,85¢ (4,669) 88¢
Total Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income, net of tax (13,629 5,362 (1,096
Comprehensive Income $ 37,02¢ % 4559 $ 40,48¢




See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
TENNANT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

December 31 2014 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 92,96: $ 80,98
Restricted Cash 352 39¢
Receivables:
Trade, less Allowances of $3,936 and $4,526, reisphe 147,22¢ 135,49:
Other 5,15k 4,69(
Net Receivables 152,38: 140,18:
Inventories 80,51: 66,90¢
Prepaid Expenses 9,552 11,42¢
Deferred Income Taxes, Current Portion 9,73¢ 13,72:
Other Current Assets 1,591 1,682
Total Current Assets 347,08¢ 315,29¢
Property, Plant and Equipment 262,21- 300,90¢
Accumulated Depreciation (175,67)) (217,43()
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 86,54 83,47¢
Deferred Income Taxes, Long-Term Portion 8,16¢ 2,42°
Goodwill 18,35t 18,92¢
Intangible Assets, Net 15,58¢ 19,02¢
Other Assets 11,19: 17,15«
Total Assets $ 486,930 $  456,30¢
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Short-Term Debt and Current Portion of Long-TernbDe $ 3,566 $ 3,80:
Accounts Payable 61,627 53,07¢
Employee Compensation and Benefits 33,84: 29,75¢
Income Taxes Payable 1,087 812
Other Current Liabilities 45,50¢ 44,07¢
Total Current Liabilities 145,63( 131,52¢
Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-Term Debt 24,57 28,00(
Employee-Related Benefits 25,71 25,17:
Deferred Income Taxes, Long-Term Portion 5,98¢ 2,87(
Other Liabilities 4,38( 4,891
Total Long-Term Liabilities 60,65 60,93
Total Liabilities 206,28: 192,46(
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 13)
Shareholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock of $0.02 par value per share, 10000shares authorized; no shares issued or odistan — —
Common Stock, $0.375 par value per share, 60,00G0b8res authorized; 18,415,047 and 18,491,52ddssud outstanding,
respectively 6,90¢ 6,93¢
Additional Paid-In Capital 26,24 31,95¢
Retained Earnings 286,09: 249,92
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (38,599 (24,97))
Total Shareholders’ Equity 280,65 263,84t
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 486,93. $ 456,30¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financia¢®ents.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
TENNANT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In thousands)

Years ended December 31 2014 2013 2012
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Earnings $ 5065 $ 40,23: 41,58¢
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings to Net Casivied by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 17,69 17,68¢ 18,07:
Amortization 2,36¢ 2,56( 2,80(
Deferred Income Taxes 12¢ 5,622 3,16¢
Share-Based Compensation Expense 7,31¢ 6,11¢ 9,092
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Returns 1,50¢ 1,27¢ 1,427
Gain on Sale of Business — — (784
Other, Net 24 21¢ (126)
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, Net (18,81) (7,61¢) (11,81
Inventories (21,155 (11,967 (149
Accounts Payable 10,19: 6,12( 97C
Employee Compensation and Benefits 1,927 (4,17¢ (3,005
Other Current Liabilities 2,78: 5,552 1,54¢
Income Taxes 3,46¢ (24¢) 797
U.S. Pension Plan Contributions — — (16,73)
Other Assets and Liabilities 1,27¢ (2,560 71t
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 59,36: 59,81« 47 ,56¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment (19,589 (24,779 (15,629
Proceeds from Disposals of Property, Plant and fEgent 291 12C 1,02¢
Acquisition of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired — (750) (750
Proceeds from Sale of Business 1,41¢ 4,261 1,01«
Decrease (Increase) in Restricted Cash 6 (253%) 3,08¢
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (17,870 (12,39)) (11,249
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short-Term Debt Borrowings — 1,50(C —
Payments of Short-Term Debt (1,500 — —
Payments of Long-Term Debt (2,016 (2,096 (2,986
Purchases of Common Stock (14,09Y) (22,157 (25,349
Proceeds from Issuances of Common Stock 2,26¢ 8,31: 4,167
Excess Tax Benefit on Stock Plans 1,79:¢ 5,17¢ 2,047
Dividends Paid (14,48°) (13,239 (12,81
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (28,03¢) (21,49YH (34,93)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cashdients (1,476 122 20¢
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,97¢ 27,04« 1,601
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 80,98 53,94( 52,33¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 9296: $ 80,98 53,94(
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid During the Year for:
Income Taxes $ 11,34: $ 13,45¢ 11,56:¢
Interest $ 1,47C % 1,60z 2,37¢
Supplemental Non-Cash Investing and Financing A
Capital Expenditures in Accounts Payable $ 1,197 $ 1,09( 1,582



See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
TENNANT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

Total
Additional Paid- Retained Accumulated Other Shareholders'
Common Share Common Stock in Capital Earnings  Comprehensive Loss Equity
Balance, December 31, 2011 18,834,94 $ 7,06 $ 15,08: $ 227,94 $ (29,23) $ 220,85:
Net Earnings — — — 41,58« — 41,58«
Other Comprehensive Loss — — — — (1,096 (1,096
Issue Stock for Directors, Employee Benefit
and Stock Plans, net of related tax
withholdings of 19,664 shares 250,85( 94 2,42: — — 2,517
Share-Based Compensation — — 7,31(C — — 7,31(C
Dividends paid $0.69 per Common Share — — — (12,81°) — (12,81
Tax Benefit on Stock Plans — — 2,047 — — 2,047
Purchases of Common Stock (621,34() (239%) (4,464 (20,64¢) — (25,349
Balance, December 31, 2012 18,464,45 $ 6,922 $ 22,39¢ $ 236,06 $ (30,339) $ 235,05
Net Earnings — — — 40,23: — 40,23:
Other Comprehensive Income — — — — 5,36¢ 5,36¢
Issue Stock for Directors, Employee Benefit
and Stock Plans, net of related tax
withholdings of 9,457 shares 461,19: 17¢ 6,54¢ — — 6,72
Share-Based Compensation — — 6,68¢ — — 6,68¢
Dividends paid $0.72 per Common Share — — — (13,239 — (13,239
Tax Benefit on Stock Plans — — 5,17¢ — — 5,17¢
Purchases of Common Stock (434,119 (169 (8,85¢) (13,130 — (22,15
Balance, December 31, 2013 18,491,52 $ 6,932 $ 31,95¢ $ 249,92 $ (24,97) $ 263,84t
Net Earnings — — — 50,65 — 50,65:
Other Comprehensive Loss — — — — (13,62 (13,62
Issue Stock for Directors, Employee Benefit
and Stock Plans, net of related tax
withholdings of 46,152 shares 148,55 56 (809 — — (74¢)
Share-Based Compensation — — 7,314 — — 7,31¢
Dividends paid $0.78 per Common Share — — — (14,48 — (14,48
Tax Benefit on Stock Plans — — 1,79¢ — — 1,79:
Purchases of Common Stock (225,03)) (84) (14,019 — — (14,09¢)
Balance, December 31, 2014 18,415,04 $ 6,90¢ $ 26,247 $ 286,09: $ (38,599 $ 280,65

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financia¢®ents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie

Nature of Operations— Our primary business is in designing, manufactueng marketing solutions that empower customeeghieve quality cleanir
performance, significantly reduce their environnaénimpact and help create a cleaner, safer, healtworld. Tennant is committed to creating
commercializing breakthrough, sustainable cleanimgvations to enhance its broad suite of prodimttuding: floor maintenance and outdoor clea
equipment, chemicdlee and other sustainable cleaning technologjgssialty surface coatings, aftermarket parts anmsemables, equipment maintenz
and repair service. Tennant products are usedt#il establishments and distribution centers, faesoand warehouses, public venues such as ared
stadiums, office buildings, schools and universitigospitals and clinics, parking lots and streatsl other environments. Customers include buildienyice
contract cleaners to whom organizations outsouaciitfes maintenance, as well as businesses #vébnm facilities maintenance themselves. The Camy
reaches these customers through the industry'ssadirect sales and service organization and gfir@i strong and wellupported network of authoriz
distributors worldwide.

Consolidation — The Consolidated Financial Statements include titeunts of Tennant Company and its subsidiarielsinfdrcompany transactions &
balances have been eliminated. In these Note®tGdimsolidated Financial Statements, Tennant Coynigaeferred to as “Tennant,” “we,” “us,” or “olr.

Translation of Non-U.S. Currency— Foreign currency-denominated assets and liasliiave been translated to U.S. dollars at gedrexchange rat
while income and expense items are translatedeatige exchange rates prevailing during the yeansGa losses resulting from translation are inetlicis
separate component of Accumulated Other Comprehenispss. The balance of cumulative foreign curretr@nslation adjustments recorded wi
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss as of DeceBthe2014 , 2013 and 2012 was a net loss of $32,820,991 and $19,734espectively. The majori
of translation adjustments are not adjusted foorime taxes as substantially all translation adjustmeelate to permanent investments in hb8- subsidiarie
Net Foreign Currency Transaction Losses are indud@®ther Income (Expense

Use of Estimates- In preparing the consolidated financial statemémtsonformity with U.S. generally accepted accoogtprinciples ("U.S. GAAP"
management must make decisions that impact theteebamounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, ms@e and the related disclosures, including disobsso
contingent assets and liabilities. Such decisiankide the selection of the appropriate accourgingiples to be applied and the assumptions ottt bas
accounting estimates. Estimates are used in detiEgniamong other items, sales promotions and theEnaccruals, inventory valuation, warranty rese
allowance for doubtful accounts, pension and ptistraent accruals, useful lives for intangible éssand future cash flows associated with impaitnbesting
for goodwill and other long-lived assets. Theséestes and assumptions are based on managenest estimates and judgments. Management evailits
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis hisitgical experience and other factors that mamegt believes to be reasonable under the circaces
We adjust such estimates and assumptions whendadtsircumstances dictate. A number of these fadtelude, among others, economic conditions, it
markets, foreign currency, commodity cost volatiind consumer spending and confidence, all of vhave combined to increase the uncertainty intén
such estimates and assumptions. As future evedtshair effects cannot be determined with precisamtual amounts could differ significantly fromota
estimated at the time the consolidated financiatestents are prepared. Changes in those estinegaling from continuing changes in the econc
environment will be reflected in the financial staents in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents- We consider all highly liquid investments with midties of three months or less from the date ofchase to be ca
equivalents.

Restricted Cash— We have a total of $352 as of December 31, 2B4#serves as collateral backing certain bankaguees and is therefore restric
This money is invested in time deposits.

Receivables- Credit is granted to our customers in the normaire® of business. Receivables are recorded anatigarrying value less reserves
estimated uncollectible accounts and sales retdimsaassess the collectability of these receivablesperform ongoing credit evaluations of our costcs’
financial condition. Through these evaluations,may become aware of a situation where a customgrrobe able to meet its financial obligations ¢
deterioration of its financial viability, credittrags or bankruptcy. The reserve requirements asedb on the best facts available to us and arelteded an
adjusted as additional information becomes availaBlur reserves are also based on amounts deteriynasing percentages applied to trade receivi
These percentages are determined by a varietyctdr&aincluding, but not limited to, current ecoriortrends, historical payment and bad debt woife-
experience. An account is considered mast-or delinquent when it has not been paid withi contractual terms. Uncollectible accounts arigten off
against the reserves when it is deemed that aroestaccount is uncollectible.

Inventories — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost orketa Cost is determined on a first-in, first-otEIFQO”) basis except for Inventories in Nc
America, which are determined on a last-in, fingt-LIFO”") basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Property, plant and equipment is carried at cosdittons and improvements that extend the liveshefassets a
capitalized while expenditures for repairs and reaiance are expensed as incurred. We generallgdate buildings and improvements by the straligtat-
method over a life of 30 years . Other propertanpland equipment are generally depreciated usiagtraight-line method based on lives of 3 yeark5t
years .

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of cost over thevidue of net assets of businesses acquired. \BlgznGoodwill on an annual basis a
year end and when an event occurs or circumstari@@e that may reduce the fair value of one ofreporting units below its carrying amount. A godid
impairment occurs if the carrying amount of a réipgrunit's goodwill exceeds its fair value. In assessing#oeverability of Goodwill, we use an analysi
qualitative factors to determine whether it is miikely than not that the fair value of a reportingit is less than its carrying amount as a basisléterminin



whether it is necessary to perform the two-stegalbimpairment test.

Intangible Assets— Intangible Assets consist of definite lived custoiigs, service contracts, an acquired trade nantktechnology. Intangible Ass
with a definite life are amortized on a straiginielibasis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

Impairment of Long-lived Assets — We periodically review our intangible and lolned assets for impairment and assess whetherteva
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounthefassets may not be recoverable. We generaliyn ggeasset group to be impaired if an estima
undiscounted future operating cash flows is less fits carrying amount. If impaired, an impairmégs is recognized based on the excess of theirg
amount of the individual asset group over its Yailue.

Purchases of Common Stock We repurchase our Common Stock under a 2012 regsegbrogram authorized by our Board of Directohss prograr
allows us to repurchase up to 1,000,88ares of our Common Stock. Upon repurchase, theghae is charged to Common Stock and the remgipinchas
price is charged to Additional Paid-in Capitalthie amount of the remaining purchase price cadsedditional Paidn Capital account to be in a de
position, this amount is then reclassified to Retdi Earnings. Common Stock repurchased is inclideshares authorized but is not included in st
outstanding.

Warranty —We record a liability for estimated warranty claiatghe time of sale. The amount of the liabilgybased on the trend in the historical rat
claims to sales, the historical length of time hedw the sale and resulting warranty claim, new ybéhtroductions and other factors. In the ever
determine that our current or future product repanl replacement costs exceed our estimates, astmgint to these reserves would be charged tonggrir
the period such determination is made. Warrantyngesn machines range from one to fgaars. However, the majority of our claims are paid within the
first six to nine months following a sale. The miéjo of the liability for estimated warranty claimepresents amounts to be paid out in the near ter
qualified warranty issues, with immaterial amoumetserved to be paid out for older equipment wayreasues.

Environmental — We record a liability for environmental clean-up an undiscounted basis when a loss is probakleambe reasonably estimated.

Pension and Profit Sharing Plans- We have pension and/or profit sharing plans cogesnbstantially all of our employees. Pension mlasts ar
accrued based on actuarial estimates with the nedjpiension cost funded annually, as needed. Ngpaeticipants have entered the pension plan sif66.2

Postretirement Benefits— We accrue and recognize the cost of retiree Inéalbhefits over the employeqseriod of service based on actuarial estim
Benefits are only available for U.S. employeesdbefore January 1, 1999.

Derivative Financial Instruments — We use derivative instruments to manage exposurdsreign currency only in an attempt to limit ungiang
exposures from currency fluctuations and not fading purposes. We periodically enter into varicostracts, principally forward exchange contratd
protect the value of certain of our foreign curedenominated assets and liabilities (principally Eheo, Australian and Canadian dollars, British i
Japanese yen, Chinese yuan, Brazilian real andddiexieso). We have elected not to apply hedge atingureatment to these contracts as our conteae
for a short duration. These contracts are markeddtket with the related asset or liability recordedDther Current Assets or Other Current LialgBti a
applicable. The gains and losses on these congeaisrally approximate changes in the value ofr¢heted assets and liabilities. Gains or lossefoomarc
foreign exchange contracts to economically hedgeiga currencydenominated net assets and liabilities are recedrniiz Other Income (Expense) under
Foreign Currency Transaction Losses within the Gbaated Statements of Earnings.

Revenue Recognitior- We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, title and risk of ownershipehaassed to the custon
the sales price is fixed or determinable and ctalgitity is reasonably assured. Generally, theger@ are met at the time the product is shipfdvisions fo
estimated returns, rebates and discounts are g\t at the time the related revenue is recogniEeeight revenue billed to customers is includediet
Sales and the related shipping expense is includ€bst of Sales. Service revenue is recognizeithénperiod the service is performed or ratably dhe
period of the related service contract.

Customers may obtain financing through thialty leasing companies to assist in their acgorsivbf our equipment products. Certain lease treticaac
classified as operating leases contain retainecewshiip provisions or guarantees, which resulteaognition of revenue over the lease term. As altese
defer the sale of these transactions and recordsdbes proceeds as collateralized borrowings oerdef revenue. The underlying equipment relatir
operating leases is depreciated on a straighblirsés, not to exceed the equipment’s estimatedibisfet

Revenues from contracts with multiple element agemnents are recognized as each element is earnedfféf service contracts in conjunction v
equipment sales in addition to selling equipmert s@rvice contracts separately. Sales proceededeia service contracts are deferred if the proses
received in advance of the service and recogniatbly over the contract period.

Share-based Compensatior- We account for employee share-based compensasiog the fair value based method. Our she®ed compensati
plans are more fully described in Note 15 of the&ibidated Financial Statements.

Research and Development Research and development costs are expensecLaeth

Advertising Costs— We advertise products, technologies and solutiortustomers and prospective customers throughietyaf marketing campai
and promotional efforts. These efforts include égttbws, online advertising,neail marketing, mailings, sponsorships and telemiamly. Advertising costs ¢
expensed as incurred. In 2014 , 2013 and 2012atehities amounted to $8,583 , $6,412 and $6,486pectively.

Income Taxes— Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaethe expected future tax consequences of tempaditferences between the book .
tax bases of existing assets and liabilities. Aigibn allowance is provided when, in managensgotigment, it is more likely than not that sometipo or al
of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Wslee established contingent tax liabilities usirgnagemens best judgment. We follow guidance provide:



Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 748come Taxes regarding uncertainty in income taxes, to redbabse contingent tax liabilities (refer
Note 14 of the Consolidated Financial Statementsdilitional information). We adjust these liali as facts and circumstances change. InteresnSep
recognized in the first period the interest wouddjip accruing. Penalties are recognized in theogesie claim or expect to claim the position in taxreturn
Interest and penalties expenses are classified mxame tax expense.

Sales Tax— Sales taxes collected from customers and remittgdternmental authorities are presented on aasi.b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

Earnings per Share— Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing B&nings by the Weighted Average Shares Outstagndiuring the perio
Diluted earnings per share assume conversion @npiatly dilutive stock options and restricted shamwards. Performandmsed shares are included in
calculation of diluted earnings per share in thartgr in which the performance targets have bebreaed.

2. New Accounting Pronouncement
Presentation of Unrecognized Tax Bene

In July 2013, the FASB issued amendments to guelamcthe financial statement presentation of aeaognized tax benefit when a net operating
carryforward, a similar tax loss or a tax creditrgiorward exists. The amendments are effectivefiggal years, and interim periods within those rgs
beginning after December 15, 2013. Adoption of thilance did not have a material impact on owltesf operations or financial position.

3. Management Action:

Q4 2013 Action— During the fourth quarter of 2013, we implementerkstructuring action to right size the cost stutetin our European operatio
primarily as a result of the strategic decisiomadjust our Direct versus Distribution selling effgrto enhance our go-toarket approach which was designe
improve profitability and increase customer satiSém. A pre-tax charge of $1,5%&cognized in the fourth quarter of 2013 consigtedharily of severanc
and was included within Selling and Administratizepense in the Condensed Consolidated Statemeriiarafngs. We believe the anticipated savings
offset the pre-tax charge in approximately §ears from the date of the action. The charge inspagr EMEA operating segment, which has no god
balance. We do not expect additional costs willnoerred related to this restructuring action.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending liabiity balances is as follows:

Severance and
Related Costs

Q4 2013 restructuring action $ 1,577
December 31, 2013 balance $ 1,577
2014 utilization:
Cash Payments (1,157
Foreign currency adjustments (65)
Change in estimate 5
December 31, 2014 balance 36¢€

Q1 2013 Action— During the first quarter of 2013, we implementedeatructuring action to right size the cost struetaf our European operatio
primarily focused on reducing the size of our saed service organization, in response to the ehgihg economic conditions. The pre-tax charg$1p84(
recognized in the first quarter of 2013 consistednarily of severance and was included within $glliand Administrative Expense in the Conde
Consolidated Statement of Earnings. We estimatedalvings would offset the pre-tax charge chargeoaimately oneyear from the date of the action. ~
charge impacted our EMEA operating segment, whah o goodwill balance. We do not expect additi@ests will be incurred related to this restruatg
action.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending liabiity balances is as follows:

Severance and
Related Costs

Q1 2013 restructuring action $ 1,44(
Cash payments (1,110
Foreign currency adjustments 17

December 31, 2013 balance $ 347

2014 utilization:

Cash payments (34)
Foreign currency adjustments (6)
December 31, 2014 balance $ —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

4. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions

On May 31, 2011, we acquired Water Star, Inc. (t&/&tar”), a Newbury, Ohio firm specializing ireetrochemistry for $4,456The total purchase pri
of $4,456 was comprised of $2,956 paid at closind avo $750installment payments were paid in cash on May B22and 2013. This acquisition
consistent with our strategy to expand our intéliatproperty in support of our long-term visiondeliver sustainable, breakthrough innovations.

Divestitures

On July 31, 2012 , we entered into a Share Purchgemement (“SPA”) with M&F Management and Finaci@mbH (“M&F”) for the sale of ownerst
of our subsidiary, Tennant CEE GmbH, and our migariterest in a joint venture, OOO Tennant. Intettge for the ownership of these entities, we vec
€815 , or $1,014 , in cash, as of the date of sadefimanced the remaining €5,351 , for a total pase price of €6,166 . A total of €2,126 , or $8,8%as
received in equal quarterly payments during 201k8the first anniversary payment of €1,075 , or $8was received on July 31, 2013. The second annim
payment of €1,075 , or $1,418 , was received op 3| 2014. The remaining €1,075 , or $1,301 aBetember 31, 2014 will be received on the thi
anniversary date of the divestiture, which is By 2015. As a result of this divestiture, we relear a pre-tax gain of $784 our Profit from Operations in t
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the yede@®ecember 31, 2012.

M&F is now a master distributor of Tennant producatshe Central Eastern Europe, Middle East andcAfmarkets. In addition, as further discusse
Note 19, M&F was a related party to Tennant attiftne of the transaction. We have identified M&Faasgariable interest entit“VIE”) and have performec
qualitative assessment that considered M&F's perposl design, our involvement and the risks an@fitsrand determined that Tennant is not the piy
beneficiary of this VIE. The only financing Tenndras provided to M&F was related to the SPA asdhateove and there are no arrangements that
require us to provide significant financial supparthe future.

5. Inventories

Inventories as of December 31, consisted of the fmling:

2014 2013

Inventories carried at LIFO:
Finished goods $ 41,68 $ 36,23¢
Raw materials, production parts and work-in-process 24,45¢ 13,92
LIFO reserve (28,16¢) (27,469)
Total LIFO inventories 37,97¢ 22,691

Inventories carried at FIFO:
Finished goods 29,85! 31,48¢
Raw materials, production parts and work-in-process 12,68: 12,72(
Total FIFO inventories 42,53: 44,20¢
Total Inventories $ 80,51: % 66,90¢

The LIFO reserve approximates the difference betwdEO carrying cost and FIFO.
6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment and related Accumulaed Depreciation, including equipment under capitaleases, as of December 31, consistes
the following:

2014 2013
Land $ 4268 % 4,311
Buildings and improvements 52,96: 53,49(
Machinery and manufacturing equipment 117,62: 143,41
Office equipment 73,671 91,04¢
Work in progress 13,68¢ 8,64¢
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 262,21 300,90¢

Less: Accumulated Debpreciatis (175.67) (217.430



Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 86,54: $ 83,47¢

Depreciation expense was $17,694 in 2014 , $17468613 and $18,072 in 2012 .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

7. Goodwill and Intangible Asset:

For purposes of performing our goodwill impairmamalysis, we have identified our reporting unitdNasth America; Latin America; EMEA and A:
Pacific. As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012performed an analysis of qualitative factors ttedmine whether it is more likely than not that fhe
value of a reporting unit is less than its carryargount as a basis for determining whether it easary to perform the twsiep goodwill impairment te
Based on our analysis of qualitative factors, weemeined that it was not necessary to perform weestep goodwill impairment test for any of our rejray
units.

The changes in the carrying amount of Goodwill aras follows:

Accumulated

Impairment
Goodwill Losses Total

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 68,58 $ (48,86¢) $ 19,717

Foreign currency fluctuations 321 (1,109 (78¢)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 68,90¢ $ (49,977) $ 18,92¢

Foreign currency fluctuations (4,04%) 3,47¢ (579
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 64,85¢ $ (46,509 $ 18,35¢

The balances of acquired Intangible Assets, excluatj Goodwill, as of December 31, are as follows:
Customer Lists
and Trade
Service Contracts Name Technology Total

Balance as of December 31, 2014

Original cost $ 2194¢ $ 4300 % 6,91t $ 33,16:

Accumulated amortization (12,099 (2,069 (3,406 (17,579
Carrying amount $ 9,847 $ 223. % 3,50¢ $ 15,58¢
Weighted-average original life (in years) 15 14 13
Balance as of December 31, 2013

Original cost $ 23,76¢  $ 4836 $ 7341 $ 35,94¢

Accumulated amortization (12,609 (1,976 (3,339 (16,919
Carrying amount $ 12,15 $ 286( $ 4012 $ 19,02¢
Weighted-average original life (in years) 15 14 13

Amortization expense on Intangible Assets was $,38,560 and $2,800 for the years ended Dece@ihed014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Estimated aggregate amortization expense based dnmet current carrying amount of amortizable Intangible Assets for each of the five succeed
years is as follows:

2015 $ 2,03¢
2016 1,74
2017 1,64«
2018 1,637
2019 1,51¢
Thereafter 7,00¢
Total $ 15,58¢
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8. Debt

Debt as of December 31, consisted of the following:

2014 2013

Short-Term Debt:
Credit facility borrowings $ — 9 1,50(C
Long-Term Debt:

Bank borrowings — 9
Credit facility borrowings 28,00( 30,00(
Collateralized borrowings 7 11
Capital lease obligations 13C 283
Total Debt 28,13: 31,80:¢
Less: current portion (3,56¢€) (3,809
Long-term portion $ 2457  $ 28,00(

As of December 31, 2014 , we had committed linesreflit totaling approximately $125,0@hd uncommitted lines of credit totaling approxiety
$87,421 . There were $10,000 in outstanding bomgwiunder our JPMorgan facility (described below)l £18,0000utstanding borrowings under
Prudential facility (described below) as of DecentkiE, 2014 . In addition, we had stand alone Isttdrcredit of approximately $2,4@futstanding and ba
guarantees in the amount of $211 . Commitmentdeasmused lines of credit for the year ended Deeer@h, 2014 were $324 .

Our most restrictive covenants are part of our 2Gtédit Agreement with JPMorgan (as defined belambich are the same covenants in our ¢
Agreement (as defined below) with Prudential (afinéd below), and require us to maintain an indebéss to EBITDA ratio of not greater than 3.00 &nt
to maintain an EBITDA to interest expense ratimofless than 3.50 to 1 as of the end of each quéseof December 31, 201dkur indebtedness to EBITL
ratio was 0.34 to 1 and our EBITDA to interest engeeratio was 52.86to 1 .

Credit Facilities

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

On April 25, 2013, we entered into Amendment Nao bur 2011 Credit Agreement which amends the Crglieement, dated as of May 5, 2011, 1
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A. (“JPMorgard} administrative agent and collateral agent, Ba®ik National Association, as syndication agent]Is\eargc
Bank, National Association, and RBS Citizens, N.&s,codocumentation agents, and the Lenders (includiddgad§an) from time to time party thereto (
“2011 Credit Agreement”)Under the original terms, the 2011 Credit Agreenpnvides us and certain of our foreign subsidgégecess to a senior unseci
credit facility until May 5, 2016 , in the amounf $125,000 , with an option to expand by up to $68, to a total of $187,500 Borrowings may t
denominated in U.S. Dollars or certain other cwiesn The 2011 Credit Agreement contains a $100s000mit on borrowings by foreign subsidiaries.

Under the original terms of the 2011 Credit Agreetnéhe fee for committed funds ranges from an ahnate of 0.25% to 0.40%depending on o
leverage ratio. Eurocurrency borrowings under @i&12Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate peurarequal to adjusted LIBOR plus an additional agre
1.50% to 2.10% , depending on our leverage ratlterAate Base Rate (“ABRDorrowings bear interest at a rate per annum dgutile greatest of (a) t
prime rate, (b) the federal funds rate plus 0.50h (&) the adjusted LIBOR rate for a one monthqueplus 1.0% plus, in any such case, an additional s
of 0.50% to 1.10% , depending on our leverage ratio

Effective April 25, 2013, Amendment No. 1 to thel20Credit Agreement principally provides the foliogy changes to the 2011 Credit Agreement:
. extends the maturity date of the 2011 Credit Agreet to March 1, 2018
e changes the fees for committed funds under @4 Zredit Agreement to an annual rate ranging f0a20% to 0.35% depending on our leverage ra

e changes the per annum interest rate on Eurgmyrborrowings to adjusted LIBOR plus an additiospitead of 1.30% to 1.90%depending on o
leverage ratio;

e changes the ABR rate at which borrowings bear @steto a rate per annum equal to the greatest) ah¢aprime rate, (b) the federal funds rate
0.50% and (c) the adjusted LIBOR rate for a onetmperiod plus 1.0% , plus, in any such case, aitiadal spread of 0.30% to 0.90%lepending ¢

our leverage ratio; and

« changes related to new or recently revised finhnegulations



The 2011 Credit Agreement gives the Lenders a pledd@5%of the stock of certain first tier foreign subsiiés. The obligations under the 2011 Cr
Agreement are also guaranteed by certain of osirtfar domestic subsidiaries.
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The 2011 Credit Agreement contains customary reptatons, warranties and covenants, includingnitiimited to covenants restricting our ability
incur indebtedness and liens and merge or conselidith another entity. Further, the 2011 Creditéament contains the following covenants:

e acovenant requiring us to maintain an indel#edrio EBITDA ratio as of the end of each quarterod greater than 3.00 to; 1
e acovenant requiring us to maintain an EBITDAmi@rest expense ratio as of the end of eacheuairno less than 3.50 to; 1

e acovenant restricting us from paying dividendsepurchasing stock if, after giving effect tekypayments, our leverage ratio is greater thad @&.a,
in such case limiting such payments to an amourging from $50,000 to $75,0@furing any fiscal year based on our leverage wdtier giving effec
to such payments; and

e acovenant restricting our ability to make asiions, if, after giving pro-forma effect to suabquisition, our leverage ratio is greater thab 2071, in
such case limiting acquisitions to $25,000 .

As of December 31, 2014 , we were in compliancé it covenants under this Credit Agreement. Thegee $10,000n outstanding borrowings unc
this facility at December 31, 2014 , with a weighte/erage interest rate of 1.46% .

Prudential Investment Management, Inc.

On July 29, 2009, we entered into a Private ShelfeAment (the “Shelf Agreement”) with Prudentialdatment Management, Inc. (“Prudentiadic
Prudential affiliates from time to time party thiereThe Shelf Agreement provides us and our suls@i access to an uncommitted, senior securedima
aggregate principal amount of $80,000debt capital. The Shelf Agreement contains regméations, warranties and covenants, includingnbtiimited tc
covenants restricting our ability to incur indebieds and liens and to merge or consolidate witlthanentity. The Shelf Agreement limits the paymei
dividends or repurchases of stock to an amountimgrigom $12,000 to $40,000 based on our leverage after giving effect to such payments.

On May 5, 2011, we entered into Amendment No. duoPrivate Shelf Agreement (the “Amendment”).
The Amendment principally provides the followingaciges to the Shelf Agreement:
« elimination of the security interest in our perdgmaperty and subsidiarie
e an amendment to the maximum leverage ratio tgreater than 3.00 toftr any period ending on or after March 31, 2(

* an amendment to our restriction regarding the payrokdividends or repurchase of stock to restricfrom paying dividends or repurchasing stoc
after giving effect to such payments, our leveradi® is greater than 2.00 to 1, in such casdiligisuch payments to an amount ranging f&50,00(
to $75,000 during any fiscal year based on ourrBayeratio after giving effect to such payments an

« an amendment to Permitted Acquisitions restricthur ability to make acquisitions, if, after gigi proforma effect to such acquisition, our lever
ratio is greater than 2.75 to 1, in such casdiligiacquisitions to $25,000 .

On July 24, 2012, we entered into Amendment Nao Bur Private Shelf Agreement (“Amendment No. 2{jich amends the Shelf Agreement.
principal change effected by Amendment No. 2 i&tension of the Issuance Period for Shelf Noteteuthe Shelf Agreement. The Issuance Period
expires on July 24, 2015 .

As of December 31, 2014 , there were $18,000 istanting borrowings under this facility, consistofgghe $8,000eries A notes issued in March 2
with a fixed interest rate of 4.00% and a severn-yeam serially maturing from 2014 to 2018 and $1€,000Series B notes issued in June 2011 with a
interest rate of 4.10% and a 10-year term seriayuring from 2015 to 2021 . The first payment 2f0R0on Series A notes was made during the first qu
of 2014. We were in compliance with all covenamtder this Shelf Agreement as of December 31, 2014 .

The Royal Bank of Scotland Citizens, N.A.

On September 14, 2010, we entered into an overfaefity with The Royal Bank of Scotland Citizerd,A. in the amount of €2,0000r approximatel
$2,421 . There was no balance outstanding onabibty as of December 31, 2014 .

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited, Shanghai Branch
On June 20, 2012, we entered into a banking faailith the HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited, ShiamigBranch in the amount of $5,00@uring
the first quarter of 2014, we repaid previous beings under this facility amounting to $1,500 aad, of December 31, 2014 , there wereontstandin

borrowings on this facility.

Collateralized Borrowings



Collateralized borrowings represent deferred splegeeds on certain leasing transactions with 4pindy leasing companies. These transaction
accounted for as borrowings, with the related assapitalized as property, plant and equipmentdemieciated straight-line over the lease term.

Capital Lease Obligations

Capital lease obligations outstanding are primardjated to sale-leaseback transactions with théindy leasing companies whereby we sell
manufactured equipment to the leasing company easklit back. The equipment covered by these I&asested to our customers over the lease term.
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The aggregate maturities of our outstanding debticluding capital lease obligations as of Decembef 32014 , are as follows:

2015 $ 4,36(
2016 4,071
2017 3,93¢
2018 13,67¢
2019 1,57¢
Thereafter 2,974
Total minimum obligations $ 30,60:
Less: amount representing interest (2,465
Total $ 28,137

9. Other Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities as of December 31, consigd of the following:

2014 2013

Taxes, other than income taxes 7052 $ 6,56t
Warranty 9,68¢ 9,66%
Deferred revenue 2,36¢ 2,30z
Rebates 11,50¢ 7,641
Freight 5,00¢ 4,59
Miscellaneous accrued expenses 6,581 8,49
Other 3,312 4,81
Total 4550¢ S 44,07¢

The changes in warranty reserves for the three yearended December 31 were as follows:

2014 2013 2012

Beginning balance 9,66: 9,357 $ 8,75¢
Product warranty provision 10,60¢ 10,64¢ 12,39¢
(Divested) acquired reserves — — (23€)
Foreign currency (215 (48) (15
Claims paid (10,36 (10,295 (11,54¢)
Ending balance 9,68¢ 9,66 $ 9,357
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10. Fair Value Measurement:

Estimates of fair value for financial assets anthrficial liabilities are based on the framework ldighed in the accounting guidance for fair vi
measurements. The framework defines fair valueyiges guidance for measuring fair value and reguiertain disclosures. The framework discL
valuation techniques, such as the market appraaarhgarable market prices), the income approactséptevalue of future income or cash flow) and tos
approach (cost to replace the service capacitynohsset or replacement cost). The framework usiliaefair value hierarchy that prioritizes the irgtd
valuation techniques used to measure fair valuetimee broad levels. The following is a brief dggtn of those three levels:

* Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted priceadjusted) in active markets for identical asset&bilities.

« Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that dxseosable for the asset or liability, either dingar indirectly. These include quoted prices fonitar
assets or liabilities in active markets and quqieces for identical or similar assets or liabdiiin markets that are not active.

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect theorting entitys own assumptior

Our population of assets and liabilities subject tdair value measurements at December 31, 2014 isfalows:

Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts $ 13C % — 9 13C % —
Total Assets $ 13¢ % — 3 13¢  $ =
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts $ — 3 — 9 — % =
Total Liabilities $ — 3 — 3 — 3 —

Our foreign currency forward exchange contractsvateed based on quoted forward foreign exchanigepat the reporting date.

We use derivative instruments to manage exposarfseign currency only in an attempt to limit unigieng exposures from currency fluctuations anc
for trading purposes. Gains or losses on forwaréifm exchange contracts to economically hedgeignreurrencydenominated assets and liabilities
recognized in Other Current Assets and Other Culriilities within the Consolidated Balance Stseahd are recognized in Other Income (Expense)r
Net Foreign Currency Transaction Losses within @ensolidated Statements of Earnings. AsDecember 31, 2014 the fair value of such contra
outstanding was an asset of $130 . There were tstaniding liabilities. As of December 31, 201the fair value of such contracts outstanding amassset
$16 and a liability of $109 . We recognized a naingof $2,384 during 2014 , a net gain of $1,068mu2013 and a net gain of $1,026 during 20¥x
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the notional amodrits@gn currency forward exchange contracts auiding were $34,631 and $30,280 , respectively.

The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidatathfe Sheets for Cash and Cash Equivalents, &edtiCash, Receivables, Other Current As
Short-Term Debt, Accounts Payable and Other Culridtilities approximate fair value due to theioshterm nature.

The fair market value of our LonBerm Debt approximates cost, based on the borrovétes currently available to us for bank loanswgimilar term
and remaining maturities.
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11. Retirement Benefit Plan:

Substantially all U.S. employees are covered bijouarretirement benefit plans, including defineddfé pension plans, posttirement medical plans &
defined contribution savings plans. Retirement Benfor eligible employees in foreign locationedunded principally through defined benefit plaasnuity
or government programs. The total cost of benédit®ur plans was $11,334 , $11,766 and $11,12®ir , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

We have a qualified, funded defined benefit reteatplan (the “U.S. Pension Plargpvering certain current and retired employeeshan U.S. Pla
benefits are based on the years of service and ewsation during the highest five consecutive ye&iservice in the final ten years of employment. mém
participants have entered the plan since 2000 pHlrehas 394 participants including 81 active elypds as of December 31, 2014 .

We have a U.S. postretirement medical benefit filam “U.S. Retiree Planp provide certain healthcare benefits for U.S. leyges hired before Janu
1, 1999. Eligibility for those benefits is basednm combination of years of service with Tennamt age upon retirement.

Our defined contribution savings plan (“401(k)")veos substantially all U.S. employees. Under thés pwe match up to 3% of the employeannue
compensation in cash to be invested per theirielectVe also make a profit sharing contributiorttte 401(k) plan for employees with more than gear o
service in accordance with our Profit Sharing PTms contribution is based upon our financial perfance and can be funded in the form of Tennamuk;
cash or a combination of both. Expenses for th€ld@lan were $7,475 , $6,423 and $6,226 duringd202013 and 2012 , respectively.

We have a U.S. nonqualified supplemental benefib gthe “U.S. Nonqualified Plan'ip provide additional retirement benefits for certamployee
whose benefits under our 401(k) plan or U.S. PenBian are limited by either the Employee Retirenhecome Security Act or the Internal Revenue Code.

We also have defined pension benefit plans in th#ed Kingdom and Germany (the “U.K. Pension Pland the “German Pension PlanThe U.K
Pension Plan and German Pension Plan cover cetaient and retired employees and both plans asedlto new participants.

On March 23, 2010, the Patient Protection and Affibte Care Act (the “PPACA'\as signed into law, and, on March 30, 2010, thaltdieCare an
Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (the “HCERANd together with PPACA, the “Acts”)yhich makes various amendments to certain aspédtse
PPACA, was signed into law. The Acts effectivelyaobe the tax treatment of federal subsidies pagbtmsors of retiree health benefit plans that ide
prescription drug benefits that are at least a@larequivalent to the corresponding benefits jled under Medicare Part D. Under the Acts, an epgls
income tax deduction for the costs of providing Made Part Dequivalent prescription drug benefits to retiredl ve reduced by the amount of the fed
subsidy beginning in 2013. Under U.S. GAAP, any actpfrom a change in tax law must be recognizedaimings in the period enacted regardless ¢
effective date. The Acts did not have a materigdant on our financial position or results of opienag.

We expect to contribute approximately $185 to ou8.WNonqualified Plan, $947 to our U.S. RetireenP%805 to our U.K. Pension Plan and $8%ul
German Pension Plan in 2015 . dlntributions to the U.S. Pension Plan are expecida required during 2015. There were no contidos made to the U.

Pension Plan during 2014. During 2012, we made %08D discretionary contribution to the U.S. Pension Pianaddition to the minimum fundi
requirements for 2011 and 2012.

Weighted-average asset allocations by asset categof the U.S. and U.K. Pension Plans as of Decemtit, 2014 are as follows:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs ~ Unobservable Inputs
Asset Category Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 508 $ 508 $ — 3 —
Mutual Funds:
U.S. Large-Cap 12,95¢ 12,95¢ — —
U.S. Small-Cap 4,00¢ 4,00¢ — —
International Equities 3,78¢ 3,78¢ — —
Fixed-Income Domestic 30,65: 30,65: — —
Investment Account held by Pension Pfan 9,98¢ — — 9,98¢
Total $ 61,89: $ 51,90 $ — 9,98¢

(1) This category is comprised of investments in insceacontract
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Weighted-average asset allocations by asset categorf the U.S. and U.K. Pension Plans as of Decemt&t, 2013 are as follows:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs
Asset Category Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 746 $ 746 $ — 3 =
Mutual Funds:
U.S. Large-Cap 20,597 20,597 — —
U.S. Small-Cap 6,971 6,971 — —
International Equities 6,32¢ 6,32¢ — —
Fixed-Income Domestic 17,75¢ 17,75¢ — —
Investment Account held by Pension Pféan 9,73 — — 9,73¢
Total $ 62,13( $ 52,397 $ — 3 9,73

(1) This category is comprised of investments in insoeacontract

Estimates of the fair value of U.S. and U.K Pensilan assets are based on the framework establishtftt accounting guidance for fair va
measurements. A brief description of the threeltewan be found in Note 10. Equity Securities anatdl Funds traded in active markets are classék
Level 1. The Investment Account held by Pensiom Rigests in insurance contracts for purposes mdifig the U.K. Pension Plan and is classified aelL8
The fair value of the Investment Account is thehcasarrender values as determined by the providéchwéire the amounts the plan would receive i
contracts were cashed out at year end. The undgrigsets held by these contracts are primarilsi@d in assets traded in active markets.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balanes of the Level 3 investments of our U.K. Pensiordn during the years ended are as follows:

2014 2013
Fair value at beginning of year $ 9,73t % 8,85¢
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net (96) 74
Net gain 974 601
Foreign currency (622) 20¢
Fair value at end of year $ 9,98¢ $ 9,73:

The primary objective of our U.S. and U.K. Pendidans is to meet retirement income commitmentddo participants at a reasonable cost to us ¢
maintain a sound actuarially funded status. Thjsdailve is accomplished through growth of capitadl afety of funds invested. The pension plangtass
invested in securities to achieve growth of capiedr inflation through appreciation and accumolatand reinvestment of dividend and interest inc
Investments are diversified to control risk. Thegéd allocation for the U.S. Pension Plan is 60%t decurities and 40%quity. Equity securities within t
U.S. Pension Plan do not include any direct investsiin Tennant Company Common Stock. The U.K. iBeri@lan is invested in insurance contracts
underlying investments primarily in equity and fixemcome securities. Our German Pension Plan igngefd, which is customary in that country.

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine bdit@bligations as of December 31 are as follows:

Non-U.S. Postretirement
U.S. Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 3.7¢% 4.62% 3.3¢% 4.3%% 3.3% 4.1%
Rate of compensation increase 3.0% 3.0(% 3.5(% 4.5(% — —
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine natriodic benefit costs as of December 31 are asléls:

Non-U.S. Postretirement
U.S. Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Discount rate 4.6% 3.7% 4.3% 4.32% 4.41%  4.9%% 4.1(% 3.21% 4.2(%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 5.7(% 6.5(% 7.7% 5.6(% 47%  4.8(% — — —
Rate of compensation increase 3.0(% 3.0(% 3.0(% 4.5(% 45(%  4.6(% — — —

The discount rate is used to discount future beméfigations back to today’s dollars. Our discoustes were determined based on Hgghdity fixec
income investments. The resulting discount rates camsistent with the duration of plan liabilitieehe Citigroup Above Median Spot Rate is use
determining the discount rate for the U.S. Plaris €xpected return on assets assumption on thetingat portfolios for the pension plans is basedha
longterm expected returns for the investment mix oetssurrently in the portfolio. Management usesohis return trends of the asset portfolio comb
with recent market conditions to estimate the feitate of return.

The accumulated benefit obligations as of Decemb@d, for all defined benefit plans are as follows:

2014 2013
U.S. Pension Plans $ 4569 $ 42,24
U.K. Pension Plan 10,65¢ 9,80z
German Pension Plan 1,027 897

Information for our plans with an accumulated beneft obligation in excess of plan assets as of Deceent81 is as follows:

2014 2013
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 1387: $ 12,77¢
Fair value of plan assets 9,98¢ 9,73:

As of December 31, 2014 and 201the U.S. Nonqualified, the U.K. Pension and threr@an Pension Plans had an accumulated benefgabibin ir
excess of plan assets.

Information for our plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets as of Decemi3dris as follows:

2014 2013
Projected benefit obligation $ 14207 $ 13,48
Fair value of plan assets 9,98¢ 9,73:

As of December 31, 2014 and 201the U.S. Nonqualified, the U.K. Pension and tleen@an Pension Plans had a projected benefit oldigat excess ¢
plan assets.

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates as of Decemh&t are as follows:

2014 2013
Healthcare cost trend rate assumption for the yeaxt 7.5(% 8.3(%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tlingegthe ultimate trend rate) 5.0(% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2031 2031

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for healthchresp To illustrate, a one-percentgg@nt change i
assumed healthcare cost trends would have theniolipeffects:



Point Point

Decrease Increase
Effect on total of service and interest cost conguis $ (46) $ 52
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $ 981 $ 1,118
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Summatries related to changes in benefit obligationand plan assets and to the funded status of our filged benefit and postretirement medice

benefit plans are as follows:

Non-U.S. Postretirement
U.S. Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Changein benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 43,65 $ 4882 $ 11,23¢  $ 10,01 $ 13,18¢ $ 14,09(
Service cost 49¢ 69C 15¢ 14z 12¢ 154
Interest cost 1,96« 1,80: 47¢ 422 497 445
Plan participants' contributions — — 21 23 — —
Actuarial loss (gain) 5,907 (4,907 1,421 66¢ 591 (1,007
Foreign exchange — — (81%) 26& — —
Benefits paid (1,706 (2,769 (482) (299 (1,110 (500
Settlement (3,289 — — — — —
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 47,027 $ 43,65 $ 12,01 $ 11,23¢  $ 13,29: $ 13,18¢
Changein fair value of plan assets and net accrued liabilities:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 52,397 $ 46,94: $ 9,73t % 8,85 % — 3 —
Actual return on plan assets 4,23¢ 7,821 974 601 — —
Employer contributions 242 391 36E 34¢ 1,11 50C
Plan participants' contributions — — 21 23 — —
Foreign exchange — — (622) 204 — —
Benefits paid (1,706 (2,769 (482) (299) (1,110 (500
Settlement (3,284 — — — — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 51,88t 52,391 9,98¢ 9,73: — —
Funded status at end of year $ 4,85¢ $ 8,74 % (2,028 $ (1,509 $ (13,297 $ (13,18¢)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
Noncurrent Other Assets $ 7,051 $ 10,987 $ — % — 3 — 3 —
Current Liabilities (18%) (149 (37 (41) (947) (919
Long-Term Liabilities (2,009 (2,099 (1,989 (1,464 (12,34% (12,26
Net accrued asset (liability) $ 485¢ % 8,74« % (2,025 $ (1,505 $ (13,299 $ (13,18¢)
Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss consist of:
Prior service (cost) credit $ (109 $ (152) $ — ¢ — 3 — ¢ 6
Net actuarial loss (5,999 (2,149 (1,682 (704 (2,179 (1,589
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss $ (6,102 $ (2,299 $ (1,682 $ (704 $ (2,179 $ (1,58))
The components of the net periodic benefit cost fahe three years ended December 31 were as follows:
Non-U.S. Postretirement
U.S. Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Medical Benefits

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Service cost $ 49 $ 69C $ 68 $ 158 $ 14z $ 13 $ 126 $ 154 $ 14z
Interest cost 1,96¢ 1,80¢ 1,92¢ 47€ 422 437 497 442 551
Expected return on plan assets (2,689 (2,917 (2,279 (539 (402) (387) — — —
Amortization of net actuarial loss 147 1,751 1,131 9 9 — — 201 57
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) 43 73 382 — — — (6) (103%) (580)
Foreign currency — — — (612) 21 1€ — — —
Settlement credit 35€ — — — — — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 32C $ 1,40 $ 1,848 $ 4C $ 192 $ 204 $ 61¢ $ 695 $ 17C
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The changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loger the three years ended December 31 were as folls:

Non-U.S. Postretirement
U.S. Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

Net actuarial loss (gain) 4,35: (9,817 2,35¢ 987 467 244 591 (1,007 92€
Amortization of prior service (cost) credit 43 (73 (382 — — — 6 10z 58C
Amortization of net actuarial loss (509 (1,757 (1,139 9) 9) — — (207) (57)
Total recognized in other comprehensive loss

(income) $ 3807 $(1164) $ 841 $ 97¢ $ 458 $ 244 $ 597 $ (1,099 $ 1,44¢

Total recognized in net periodic benefit (cc
and other comprehensive loss (income)$ 4,127 $(10,23%) $ 2,68¢ $ 101¢ $ 65C $ 448 $ 121¢ $ (404 $ 1,61¢

The following benefit payments, which reflect expeed future service, are expected to be paid for oud.S. and Non-U.S. plans:

U.S. Pension Non-U.S. Postretirement

Benefits Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2015 $ 2,23¢ $ 22¢ % 947
2016 2,41¢ 23t 1,012
2017 2,57 241 1,063
2018 2,72¢ 247 1,06¢
2019 2,822 254 1,08¢
2020 to 2024 15,13t 1,38¢ 5,29¢
Total $ 27,91¢ $ 259 $ 10,46¢

The following amounts are included in Accumulated Gher Comprehensive Loss as of December 31, 20&Ad are expected to be recognized
components of net periodic benefit cost during 2015

Postretirement

Pension Medical
Benefits Benefits
Net actuarial loss $ 1561 $ 14C
Prior service cost 42 —
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12. Shareholders' Equity
Authorized Share

We are authorized to issue an aggregate of 61,00Gbares; 60,000,000 are designated as Commok, $ang a par value of $0.3f®r share, ar
1,000,000 are designated as Preferred Stock, havipgr value of $0.0@er share. The Board of Directors is authorizegdtblish one or more series
preferred stock, setting forth the designationaaftesuch series, and fixing the relative rights arederences of each such series.

Purchase Right

On November 10, 2006, the Board of Directors appdoa Rights Agreement and declared a dividend efpoeferred share purchase right for €
outstanding share of Common Stock. Each rightleatthe registered holder to purchase from us oedondredth of a Series A Junior Participating Preft
Share of the par value of $0.02 per share at & mficb100 per one hundreddi a Preferred Share, subject to adjustment. Tgetgiare not exercisable
transferable apart from the Common Stock untiléhdier of: (i) the close of business on the fiftgeday following a public announcement that a persi
group of affiliated or associated persons has becam“Acquiring Person”i.e., has become, subject to certain exceptiom$yding for stock ownership |
employee benefit plans, the beneficial owner of 20%nore of the outstanding Common Stock), or [ig tlose of business on the fifteenth day followtimg
first public announcement of a tender offer or exae offer the consummation of which would resulaiperson or group of affiliated or associatedqe
becoming, subject to certain exceptions, the beiafdwner of 20%or more of the outstanding Common Stock (or sutdr ldate as may be determined by
Board of Directors prior to a person or group dfliafed or associated persons becoming an AcqgiEierson). After a person or group becomes an Aiog
Person, each holder of a Right (other than an AsguPerson) will be able to exercise the righthat current exercise price of the Right and recttieenumbe
of shares of Common Stock having a market valugvoftimes the exercise price of the right, or, defieg upon the circumstances in which the rightsab®
exercisable, the number of common shares of thalifiog Person having a market value of two times ekercise price of the right. At no time do thghti
have any voting power. We may redeem the rightsp001 per right at any time prior to a persorga@up acquiring 20%r more of the Common Stor
Under certain circumstances, the Board of Directoay exchange the rights for our Common Stock duce the 20% thresholds to not less than 10%e
rights will expire on December 26, 2016 , unlesersed or earlier redeemed or exchanged by us.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive L

Components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Lossiet of tax, within the Consolidated Balance Sheetand Statements of Shareholder
Equity as of December 31 are as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (32,090 $ (21,99) $ (29,739
Pension and retiree medical benefits (6,509 (2,980 (20,599
Total Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss $ (38,599 $ (24,97) $ (30,339

The changes in components of Accumulated Other Comghensive Loss, net of tax, are as follows:

Foreign Currency

Translation Pension and Post

Adjustments Retirement Benefits Total
December 31, 2013 $ (21,99) $ (2,980 $ (24,97
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (10,099 (3,86¢) (13,96
Amounts reclassified from Accumulated Other Compredive Loss — 34E 34E
Net current period other comprehensive loss (10,099 (3,529 (13,629
December 31, 2014 $ (32,090 $ (6,507) $ (38,599

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss associatddpeitsion and postretirement benefits are incluiébte 11.
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13. Commitments and Contingencie

We lease office and warehouse facilities, vehieleg office equipment under operating lease agretsnesich include both monthly and longersr
arrangements. Leases with initial terms of one ygamnore expire at various dates through 288@ generally provide for extension options. Reqieas!
under the leasing agreements (exclusive of reateesixes, insurance and other expenses payat®e thedleases) amounted to $18,446 , $17,873anAb2:
in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

The minimum rentals for aggregate lease commitmentas of December 31, 2014 , were as follows:

2015 $ 7,73¢
2016 4,67¢
2017 2,93(
2018 1,60t
2019 86¢€
Thereafter 554
Total $ 18,36¢

Certain operating leases for vehicles contain tedidalue guarantee provisions, which would becalue at the expiration of the operating le
agreement if the fair value of the leased vehiddsss than the guaranteed residual value. Theeggte residual value at lease expiration of theases i
$11,764 , of which we have guaranteed $9,530 .fA3cember 31, 2014 , we have recorded a lialfititythe estimated end-aérm loss related to this resid
value guarantee of $220r certain vehicles within our fleet. Our fleesalcontains vehicles we estimate will settle aam.gGains on these vehicles will
recognized at the end of the lease term.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we entered Boagreement with a supplier, commencing Aprild1 2, with a total commitment of $2,48%tendin(
through December 31, 2015 .

During the second quarter of 2014, we enteredarttree year software licensing agreement withiad tmmmitment of $1,198 .

During the second quarter of 2012, we entered anthree year agreement with a supplier, commengamgary 1, 2013 with a total commitment
$2,102 of which $801 remains outstanding as of Bber 31, 2014 .

In the ordinary course of business, we may becdael with respect to pending and threatened titga tax, environmental and other matters. WHik
ultimate results of current claims, investigati@msl lawsuits involving us are unknown at this tive, do not expect that these matters will have teria
adverse effect on our consolidated financial positir results of operations. Legal costs associatddsuch matters are expensed as incurred.
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14. Income Taxe:

Income from continuing operations for the three yees ended December 31 was as follows:

2014 2013 2012
U.S. operations $ 52,31 $ 54,70: $ 47,22(
Foreign operations 17,22: 5,17¢ 12,67(
Total $ 69,53¢ $ 59,87¢ $ 59,89(
Income tax expense (benefit) for the three years dad December 31 was as follows:
2014 2013 2012

Current:

Federal $ 11,90 $ 13,55 % 8,15¢

Foreign 3,37¢ 3,567 4,63:

State 1,54z 1,13¢ 1,08¢

$ 16,81¢ $ 18,25¢ % 13,88(

Deferred:

Federal $ 2,65 $ 1,85¢ $ 4,42

Foreign (529 (4249 (12¢)

State (58) (39 12¢

$ 2,06¢ $ 1,39: §$ 4,42¢

Total:

Federal $ 14,55 $ 15,407 $ 12,58:

Foreign 2,84¢ 3,14: 4,507

State 1,48t 1,097 1,21¢
Total Income Tax Expense $ 18,887 $ 19647 $ 18,30¢

U.S. income taxes have not been provided on appately $28,434 of undistributed earnings of nd®. subsidiaries. We do not have any plar
repatriate the undistributed earnings. Any reptdmafrom foreign subsidiaries that would resultimcremental U.S. taxation is not being consideteds
management’s belief that reinvesting these earrongsde the U.S. is the most efficient use of @dpi

We have Dutch and German tax loss carryforwardmpfoximately $13,012 and $13,49&spectively. If unutilized, the Dutch tax lossryforward wil
expire after 9 years The German tax loss carryforward has no expinatiate. Because of the uncertainty regarding @iz of the Dutch tax lo

carryforward, a valuation allowance was establisfidis valuation allowance decreased in 2014 duedolts of operations.

We have Dutch foreign tax credit carryforwards df083. Because of the uncertainty regarding utilizattbthe Dutch foreign tax credit carryforwarc
valuation allowance was established.

A valuation allowance for the remaining deferrexl égsets is not required since it is more likelgntimot that they will be realized through carryb&a
taxable income in prior years, future reversalex$ting taxable temporary differences and futaseble income.

Our effective income tax rate varied from the U.Sfederal statutory tax rate for the three years endé December 31 as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Tax at statutory rate 35.C% 35.(% 35.C%
Increases (decreases) in the tax rate from:
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 1.7 1.7 1.C
Effect of foreign operations (4.€) 3.9 (6.2)
Effect of changes in valuation allowances (0.9) 3.7 .3
Domestic production activities deduction (1.€) (1.€) 1.5

Nthar nar (2 M\ (27N —



Effective income tax rate 27.2% 32.6% 30.€%
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities were comprisedf the following as of December 31:

2014 2013
Deferred Tax Assets:
Employee wages and benefits, principally due tawads for financial reporting purposes 16,69¢ 14,83:
Warranty reserves accrued for financial reportingppses 2,89t 2,80¢
Receivables, principally due to allowance for déuikdccounts and tax accounting method for equigmantals 1,54¢ 1,59:
Tax loss carryforwards 6,84~ 8,69¢
Tax credit carryforwards 1,04: 4,07¢
Other 1,24¢ 2,52¢
Gross Deferred Tax Assets $ 30,27 % 34,52«
Less: valuation allowance (5,699 (7,249
Total Net Deferred Tax Assets $ 2457 $ 27,28:
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Inventories, principally due to changes in invept@serves $ 308 % 30¢€
Property, Plant and Equipment, principally dueifedences in depreciation and related gains 6,74¢ 7,44¢
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 5,611 6,25:
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities $ 12,66 $ 14,00t
Net Deferred Tax Assets $ 1191:  $ 13,27¢

The valuation allowance at December 31, 2014 graibi applies to Dutch tax loss and tax credit ylamvards that, in the opinion of management
more likely than not to expire unutilized. Howevtr,the extent that tax benefits related to theseytorwards are realized in the future, the reiuncin the
valuation allowance will reduce income tax expense.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounbf unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at January 1, $ 3,66( $ 3,48(
Increases as a result of tax positions taken dwripdor period — 15E
Increases as a result of tax positions taken duhegurrent year 61C 50¢
Decreases relating to settlement with tax autheariti (6) —
Reductions as a result of a lapse of the applicsthkaite of limitations (1,039 (295)
Decreases as a result of foreign currency fluatnati (202) (18¢)
Balance at December 31, $ 3,02¢ % 3,66(

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemefitDecember 31, 2014 and 2013 are potential irerdf$2,684 and $3,384respectively, that
recognized, would affect the effective tax raterfroontinuing operations.

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesalélated to unrecognized tax benefits as a coempari income tax expense. In addition to the ligt
of $3,029 and $3,660 for unrecognized tax benefitof December 31, 2014 and 2013 , there was ajppately $557 and $525respectively, for accru
interest and penalties. To the extent interest @amhlties are not assessed with respect to untaeripositions, the amounts accrued will be reliaac
reflected as an adjustment to income tax expense.

We and our subsidiaries are subject to U.S. fedecalme tax as well as income tax of numerous statkforeign jurisdictions. We are generally noge
subject to U.S. federal tax examinations for tagatadars before 2011 and, with limited exceptiotatesand foreign income tax examinations for taxafglar
before 2007.

We are currently undergoing income tax examinationgrious state and foreign jurisdictions covgrd07 to 2011 Although the final outcome of the
examinations cannot be currently determined, wizbelthat we have adequate reserves with respéoese examinations.

We do not anticipate that total unrecognized teneffies will change significantly within the next H2onths.



41




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except shares and per share data)
15. ShareBased Compensatio

We have four plans under which we have awardecesbased compensation grants: The 1999 Amended estatBd Stock Incentive Plan (“1999 Plan”
which provided for share-based compensation gtantsir executives and key employees, the 1997 Nuopl&y/ee Directors Option Plan (“1997 Planihich
provided for stock option grants to our non-empy&irectors, the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (“200anB and the Amended and Restated 2010 ¢
Incentive Plan, as Amended (“2010 Planfjhich were adopted as a continuing step toward eagging our equity compensation programs to redhe
complexity of our equity compensation programs.

The 1997 Plan was terminated in 2006 and all reimgishares were transferred to the 1999 Plan amegg by the shareholders in 2006. Awards grz
under the 1997 Plan prior to 2006 that remain antihg continue to be governed by the respectiae phder which the grant was made. Upon approviie
1999 Plan in 2006, we ceased making grants of duduvards under these plans and subsequent grafutue awards were made from the 1999 Plar
governed by its terms.

The 2007 Plan terminated our rights to grant awardter the 1999 Plan. Awards previously granteceutite 1999 Plan remain outstanding and con
to be governed by the terms of that plan.

The 2010 Plan, originally approved by our sharefiaddn April 28, 2010 and amended and restatedibglaareholders on April 25, 2012, terminatec
rights to grant awards under the 2007 Plan; howergy awards granted under the 2007 or 2010 Pleisdb not result in the issuance of shares of Caomn
Stock may again be used for an award under the Ptdfd The 2010 Plan was amended and restatedrbghateholders on April 24, 2013, increasing
number of shares available under the amended 2@htfil®m 1,500,000 shares to 2,600,000 shares.

As of December 31, 2014 , there were 252,5B@res reserved for issuance under the 1997 Rlan]1999 Plan and the 2007 Plan for outstar
compensation awards and 1,446,%82res were available for issuance under the 2@0fér current and future equity awards. The Camgpéion Committe
of the Board of Directors determines the numbeshaires awarded and the grant date, subject terims of our equity award policy.

We recognized total Share-Based Compensation Egpefis7,314 , $6,116 and $9,092 , respectivelyinduhe years ended 2014 , 2013 and 20IRe
total excess tax benefit recognized for share-basethensation arrangements during the years erifbt 22013 and 2012 was $1,793 , $5,178 and $2,04
respectively.

Stock Option Awards

We determined the fair value of our stock optioraads using the Blac&choles valuation model that uses the assumptiotesirin the table below. T
expected life selected for stock options grantednduthe year represents the period of time thatdtock options are expected to be outstandingdba
historical data of stock option holder exercise terchination behavior of similar grants. The rise interest rate for periods within the contratiife of the
stock option is based on the U.S. Treasury rate tneexpected life at the time of grant. Expeatelatilities are based upon historical volatility aur stocl
over a period equal to the expected life of eaohksoption grant. Dividend yield is estimated otrex expected life based on our dividend policy histbrica
dividends paid. We use historical data to estinpagevesting forfeiture rates and revise those estimatessibsequent periods if actual forfeitures difi@m
those estimates.

The following table illustrates the valuation assumtions used for the 2014 , 2013 and 2012 grants:

2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility 47 - 50% 51% 51 -52%
Weighted-average expected volatility 50% 51% 52%
Expected dividend yield 1.1-1.3% 1.6% 1.6-1.7%
Weighted-average expected dividend yield 1.3% 1.6% 1.7%
Expected term, in years 6 6 0.2-6
Risk-free interest rate 1.8-2.0% 09-1.1% 0.1-1.1%

Employee stock option awards prior to 2005 includedload feature for options granted to key enmgxsy This feature allowed employees to exe
options through a stock-fatock exercise using mature shares, and employeesgvanted a new stock option (reload option) kfgutne number of shares
Common Stock used to satisfy both the exercisemiche option and the minimum tax withholdinguigments. The reload options granted had an es¢
price equal to the fair market value of the ComrBbwck on the grant date. Stock options grante@mjunction with reloads vested immediately and aaern
equal to the remaining life of the initial granbi@pensation expense was fully recognized for reftack options as of the reload date. The finaaeloption
outstanding were exercised in January 2014.

Beginning in 2004, new stock option awards graweest one-third each year over a three year penddhave a 1§ear contractual term. These grant
not contain a reload feature. Compensation expegsal to the grant date fair value is recognizadttiese awards over the vesting period. Stock pg
granted to employees are subject to accelerateshsikp if the option holder meets the retiremepfiition set forth in the 2010 Plan.



In addition to stock options, we also occasionglgint cash-settled stock appreciation rights (“SARs employees in certain foreign locations. TI
were no outstanding SARs as of December 31, 20d4ar8ARs were granted during 2014 , 2013 or 2012 .
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The following table summarizes the activity duringthe year ended December 31, 2014 for stock optiomards:

Weighted-Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 877,32. $ 30.4<
Granted 118,35¢ 61.8:
Exercised (74,857) 30.31
Forfeited (12,799 52.5¢
Outstanding at end of year 908,03( $ 34.21
Exercisable at end of year 677,79C % 27.7¢

The weighted-average grant date fair value of stquions granted during the years ended Decemhe2@®H4 , 2013 and 2012 was $26.93 , $1%6Q
$16.60 , respectively. The total intrinsic valuestdck options exercised during the years ende@mber 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $2,972 , $15641
$5,826 , respectively. The aggregate intrinsic #atioptions outstanding and exercisable at Deceihe2014 was $34,486 and $30,1If@spectively. Tt
weighted-average remaining contractual life forimm outstanding and exercisable as of DecembeR@®ll4 , was 6 years andygars, respectively. As
December 31, 2014 , there was unrecognized comipemsast for nonvested options of $3,221 whiclexpected to be recognized over a weigtaeerag
period of 1.4 years.

Restricted Share Awards

Restricted share awards for employees generallg laathree year vesting period from the effectivie dd the grant. Restricted share awards to no
employee directors vest upon a change of contrapon termination of service as a director occgrahleast six months after grant date of the awartbn¢
as termination is for one of the following reasodsath; disability; retirement in accordance witnfant policy (e.g., age, term limits, etc.); rasigpn a
request of Board (other than for gross miscondueijgnation following at least six monthatlvance notice; failure to be renominated (unless d
unwillingness to serve) or reelected by sharehsldarremoval by shareholders.

The following table summarizes the activity duringthe year ended December 31, 2014 , for nonvestedécted share awards:

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Shares Value
Nonvested at beginning of year 150,94: $ 37.8¢
Granted 21,41 62.4¢
Vested (20,309 40.3¢
Forfeited (7,582 50.87
Nonvested at end of year 144,470 $ 40.51

The total fair value of shares vested during theryended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $&BA3 and $861 respectively. As «
December 31, 2014 , there was $1,671 of total wmgrzed compensation cost related to nonveste@shwrich is expected to be recognized over a weilght
average period of 2.0 years.

Performance Share Awards

We grant performance share awards to key emplagaspart of our lonterm management compensation program. These aagrdsarned based ug
achievement of certain financial performance targeer a three year period. We determine the fliresof these awards as of the date of grant arabnéz¢
the expense over a thrgear performance period. Performance shares argegran restricted stock units. They are payablstotk and vest solely up
achievement of certain financial performance targeiring this three year period.

The 2014 performance share award covers the treaeperformance period from the beginning of fisear 2014 to the end of fiscal year 2016.
2013 performance share award covers the thieae performance period from the beginning of figezar 2013 to the end of fiscal year 2015. The2
performance share award covered the three yearrpehce period from the beginning of fiscal yeat26 the end of fiscal year 2014.

The 2011 performance share award covered the ffeae performance period from the beginning of fisezar 2011 to the end of fiscal year 2(
Performance shares were granted in restricted stoit&. They were paid in stock and vested solplynuachievement of certain financial performancget
during this three year period.

The 2010 performance share award covered the ffeee performance period from the beginning of fisear 2010 to the end of fiscal year 2(



Performance shares were granted in restricted sinitk. They were paid in cash and vested solebnugchievement of certain financial performe
targets during this three year period.
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Share-Based Liabilities

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , we had $139$28@ in total sharbased liabilities recorded on our Consolidated Be#aSheets, respective
During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2012@b# , we paid out $275 , $3,134 and $2,212 elat011, 2010 and 2009 shdr@sed liability award

respectively.

16. Earnings Per Share

The computations of Basic and Diluted Earnings peBhare for the years ended December 31 were as folls:

2014 2013 2012
Numerator:
Net Earnings $ 50,65 $ 40,23:  $ 41,58¢
Denominator:
Basic - Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 18,217,38 18,297,37 18,544,89
Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock options 523,47: 536,08: 557,12(
Diluted - Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 18,740,85 18,833,45 19,102,01
Basic Earnings per Share $ 27¢  $ 22C % 2.24
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 27C % 214 % 2.1¢

Options to purchase 91,199 , 132,803 and 233,6&festof Common Stock were outstanding during 202@13 and 2012 respectively, but were r
included in the computation of diluted earnings glesire. These exclusions are made if the exerdisespof these options are greater than the averagke
price of our Common Stock for the period, if themher of shares we can repurchase under the trestmaly method exceeds the weighted shares outag

in the options, or if we have a net loss, as tifecef are anti-dilutive.

17. Segment Reporting

We are organized into fownperating segments: North America; Latin Americardpe, Middle East, Africa; and Asia Pacific. Wardzne our Nort
America and Latin America operating segments ih® ‘tAmericas”for reporting Net Sales by geographic area. In atanmce with the objective and be
principles of the applicable accounting guidance,aggregate our operating segments into one rég@iiagment that consists of the design, manufaetu

sale of products used primarily in the maintenasfagonresidential surfaces.

The following table presents Net Sales by operatingegment for the years ended December 31:

2014 2013 2012
Net Sales:
Americas $ 569,000 $ 514,54 $ 491,66
Europe, Middle East, Africa 165,68t 157,20¢ 166,20¢
Asia Pacific 87,29: 80,25¢ 81,11:
Total $ 821,98. $ 752,01: $ 738,98(
The following table presents long lived assets byerating segment as of December 31.:
2014 2013 2012
Long-lived assets:
Americas $ 103,95¢ $ 106,40¢ $ 100,66:
Europe, Middle East, Africa 24,05 28,29¢ 31,16¢
Asia Pacific 3,66¢ 3,88: 4,49¢
Total $ 131,67¢ $ 138,58° $ 136,32¢

Accounting policies of the operations in the vas@perating segments are the same as those desicrilete 1 of the Consolidated Financial Staters



Net Sales are attributed to each operating seghss®d on the country from which the product is phipand are net of intercompany sales. Inform
regarding sales to customers geographically lociatéide United States is provided in Item 1, BusseSegment and Geographic Area Financial Informe
No single customer represents more than 10% of owsdiiolated Net Sales. Loriyed assets consist of Property, Plant and Equip@oodwill, Intangibl
Assets and certain other assets.
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The following table presents revenues for groups @imilar products and services for the years endeBecember 31:

2014 2013 2012

Net Sales:
Equipment 500,14: $ 444,7T: 435,90(
Parts and consumables 182,84! 176,44: 175,78:
Service and other 114,02 109,53 106,04¢
Specialty surface coatings 24,97( 21,26: 21,25(
Total 821,98. $ 752,01: 738,98(

18. Consolidated Quarterly Data (Unaudited
2014
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Net Sales $ 183,97¢ 219,08: $ 202,64 216,27
Gross Profit 76,917 95,26 87,16 93,08¢
Net Earnings 5,79¢ 15,528 11,79z 17,54
Basic Earnings per Share $ 0.3z 0.8t % 0.6 0.9¢
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 0.31 08: $ 0.6% 0.9z
2013
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Net Sales $ 168,09: 200,23t $ 188,54: 195,14(
Gross Profit 72,52¢ 87,74. 81,86: 83,78:
Net Earnings 5,05¢ 14,25 10,61 10,30:
Basic Earnings per Share $ 0.2¢ % 0.7¢ % 0.5¢ $ 0.5€
Diluted Earnings per Share $ 027 $ 0.7¢ % 0.5€ % 0.5¢

The summation of quarterly data may not equatbaaéalculation for the full fiscal year as quastaralculations are performed on a discrete basis.

Regular quarterly dividends aggregated to $0.78spare in 2014 , or $0.18 per share for the fitgtrgr of 2014 and $0.28er share for the last th
quarters of 2014, and $0.72 per share in 2013%0dr8 per share per quarter.

19. Related Party Transaction:

On July 31, 2012, we entered into a share purchgeement with M&F, as further discussed in Not&wo of the M&F shareholders are individuals \
were employed by Tennant prior to the transactimte énd are no longer employed by Tennant as dfahsaction date.

During the first quarter of 2008, we acquired Sdae Alfa Ltda. and entered into lease agreementseftain properties owned by or partially owng

the former owners of this entity. Some of thesaviddals are current employees of Tennant. Leasenpats made under these lease agreements ¢
material to our financial position or results ofogtions.

45




ITEM 9 — Changes in and Disagreements with Accountds
on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

ITEM 9A — Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chiekcutive Officel
and our Principal Financial and Accounting Officdrave evaluated tt
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and propesi for the period endt
December 31, 2014 (as defined in Rules 13a-15(d)1&15(e) under th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange JctBased on the
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and ourneipal Financial an
Accounting Officer have concluded that our disclesucontrols ani
procedures are effective to ensure that informatémuired to be disclosed
us in reports that we file or submit under the Eage Act is recorde:
processed, summarized and reported within the fm@eods specified i
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and foramg] that suc
information is accumulated and communicated toroanagement, includir
our principal executive and our principal financidficers, as appropriate
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

Changes in Internal Control

There were no significant changes in our interrmadtiol over financia
reporting during the most recently completed fiseplarter that hav
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenilly affect, our interne
control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequa
internal control over financial reporting, as suehm is defined in Exchang
Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under thsupervision and with the participation of ¢
management, including our Principal Executive @fficand Principe
Accounting and Financial Officer, we conducted assessment of tr
effectiveness of our internal control over finahdieporting based on tt
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Frameworkssued by thi
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®@ommission. Base
on our assessment under the frameworkniernal Control —Integrated
Framework (COSO) (1992), our management concluded that otarrial
control over financial reporting was effective ddecember 31, 2014 .

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accagntfirm, has
audited the consolidated financial statements deduin this annual report «
Form 10K and, as a part of this audit, has issued theionteincluded in Iten
8, on the effectiveness of our internal controlrdirancial reporting.

/sl H. Chris Killingstad

H. Chris Killingstad
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Thomas Paulson

Thomas Paulson
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Attestation Report of Independent Registered Publidccounting Firm

The attestation report required under this iternastained in Item 8 ¢
this annual report on Form 10-K.

PART Il

ITEM 10 — Directors, Executive Officers and Corporae
Governance

The sections entitled “Board of Directors Inforroati and “Section 16
(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” imr @015Proxy Stateme!
are incorporated herein by reference.

The list below identifies those persons designatedxecutive officers
the Company, including their age, position with tbempany and positio
held by them during the past five or more years.

David W. Huml, Senior Vice President, Global Markgt

David W. Huml (46) joined the Company in Octobed2@s Senior Vic
President, Global Marketing. From 2006 to 2014,hkeé& various positior
with Pentair plc, a global manufacturer of wated flnid solutions, valves ai
controls, equipment protection and thermal managénmoducts, mo
recently as Vice President, Applied Water PlatfoFfrom 1992 to 2006, |
held various positions with Graco Inc., a designenufacturer and marke
of systems and equipment to move, measure, codisplense and spray flt
and coating materials, including Worldwide Directifr Marketing, Contra
Equipment Division.

H. Chris Killingstad, President and Chief Execut®ficer

H. Chris Killingstad (59) joined the Company in Ap2002 as Vic
President, North America and was named PresidethtC&#0O in 2005. Frol
1990 to 2002, he was employed by The Pillsbury Camgpa consumer foo
manufacturer. From 1999 to 2002 he served as Sa&ficw President ar
General Manager of Frozen Products for PillsburytiNédmerica; from 199
to 1999 he served as Regional Vice President andaiylag Director ¢
Pillsbury Europe, and from 1990 to 1996 was Redidfiae President ¢
Haagenbazs Asia Pacific. He held the position of Inteio@l Busines
Development Manager at PepsiCo Inc., from 18820 and Financi
Manager for General Electric, from 1978-1980.

Carol E. McKnight, Senior Vice President, Globalrhn Resources

Carol E. McKnight (47) joined the Company in Juifid2 as Senior Vic
President, Global Human Resources. From 2002 tet,26e held variol
positions with Alliant Techsystems, Inc. (ATK), aerospace, defense i
sporting goods company, most recently as Vice Beesj Human Resourc
From 2000 to 2002, she was a Compensation CongiMtamager at NR!
Energy, Inc., a wholesale power generation compérgm 1994 to 2000, s
provided consulting and project management senfizeSilverStone Grou
Inc. (formerly Mathis & Associates, LLC), a compatisn and benefi
consulting firm.

Thomas Paulson, Senior Vice President and Chiefrfeiial Officer

Thomas Paulson (58) joined the Company in March62@8 Vict
President and Chief Financial Officer and was nai@edior Vice Preside
and Chief Financial Officer in October 2013. Ptiofjoining Tennant, he w
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presidehtimovex from 2001 t
2006. Prior to joining Innovex, a manufacturer décéronic interconne
solutions, he worked for The Pillsbury Companyduer 19 years. He beca
a Vice President at Pillsbury in 1995 and was tlee President of Finance
the $4 billion North American Foods Division for evtwo years befo
joining Innovex.



ITEM 9B — Other Information

None.
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Michael W. Schaefer, Senior Vice President, Chiefinical Officer

Michael W. Schaefer (54) joined the Company in 3an2008 as Vic
President, Chief Technical Officer and was namedideVice Presiden
Chief Technical Officer in October 2013. From 2G6QJanuary 2008, he w
Vice President of Dispensing Systems, Lean Six Sigmd Quality at Ecola
Inc., a provider of cleaning, sanitizing, food $gfand infection preventic
products and services, where he led R&D effortgtieir equipment busine
continuous improvement and standardization of R&Bcpsses. Prior to th
he held various management positions at Alticor pOmtion and Kra
General Foods.

Don B. Westman, Senior Vice President, Global Ojmmta

Don B. Westman (61) joined the Company in Novenm2@d6 as Vic
President, Global Operations and was named Seritg Rresident, Glob
Operations in October 2013. Prior to joining Tern&e was Vice Preside
of Operations Pump Division for Pentair, Inc. (predecessor tot®emlc), ¢
global manufacturer of water and fluid solutionsalves and control
equipment protection and thermal management predutom 2005 t
November 2006. From 2003 to 2005, he was Vice &easiof Operation—
Pentair Water. From 1997 to 2003, he was Vice Bessiof Operations fi
Hoffmans Enclosures, where he began in 1982 asnafagturing engineerir
manager.

Heidi M. Wilson, Senior Vice President, General @sel and Secretary

Heidi M. Wilson (64) joined the Company in 2003 Assistant Gener
Counsel and Assistant Secretary. She was named Rfiesident, Genel
Counsel and Secretary in 2005 and Senior Vice &ati General Coun:
and Secretary in October 2013. She was a partrter@éneral Counsel Li
during 2003. From 1995 to 2001, she was Vice PessjdGeneral Couns
and Secretary at Musicland Group, Inc. From 1993385, she was Sen
Legal Counsel at Medtronic, Inc. Prior to that, sves a partner at Faegre
Benson L.L.P. (predecessor to Faegre Baker Dahiél$.), a Minneapoli
law firm, which she joined in 1976.

Richard H. Zay, Senior Vice President, The Americas

Richard H. Zay (44) joined the Company in June 284¥ice Presider
Global Marketing. He was named Senior Vice Pregid8tobal Marketing i
October 2013 and Senior Vice President, The AmerinaJuly 2014. Froi
2006 to June 2010, he held various positions withirfyool Corporation,
manufacturer of major home appliances, most regeattl General Manag
KitchenAid Brand. From 1993 to 2006, he held vasipositions with Mayte
Corporation, including Vice President, Jein-Brand, Director of Marketing
Maytag Brand, and Director of Cooking Category Mgegraent.

Business Ethics Guide

We have adopted the Tennant Company Business E@igde, a
amended by the Board of Directors in December 2@hich applies to all
our employees, directors, consultants, agents agdn& else acting on ¢
behalf. The Business Ethics Guide includes pasicptovisions applicable
our senior financial management, which includes@hief Executive Office
Chief Financial Officer, Controller and other emy#es performing simil;
functions. A copy of our Business Ethics Guide vaikable on the Invest
Relations website at investors.tennantco.com, acmpg will be mailed upc
request to Investor Relations, Tennant Company, Bo® 1452, Minneapoli
MN 5544041452. We intend to post on our website any amentimenol
waiver from, a provision of our Business Ethics d&uithat applies to o
Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financialf@ér, Principal Accountin
Officer, Controller and other persons performingifr functions promptl
following the date of such amendment or waiveratdition, we have al:
posted copies of our Corporate Governance Prircighe the Charters for ¢
Audit, Compensation, Governance and Executive Cdtaes on our website.

ITEM 11 — Executive Compensation

The sections entitled “Director Compensation” andExécutive
Compensation Information” in our 201Broxy Statement are incorporé
herein by reference.

ITEM 12 — Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matis

The sections entitled “Equity Compensation Planodmiation” anc
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownerglavianagementin oui
2015 Proxy Statement are incorporated herein lereate.

ITEM 13 — Certain Relationships and Related Transattons,
and Director Independence

The sections entitled “Director Independence” ariRelated Persc
Transaction Approval Policy” in our 201Broxy Statement are incorpors
herein by reference.

ITEM 14 — Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The section entitled Fees Paid to Independent Registered P

Accounting Firm” in our 2015Proxy Statement is incorporated hereir
reference.

e.
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PART IV
ITEM 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

A. The following documents are filed as a part of thisort
1. Financial Statement:
Consolidated Financial Statements filed as pattiisfreport are contained in Item 8 of this anmeabrt on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedul

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Returns:

Balance at beginning of year $ 4,52¢ $ 439 $ 4,82¢
Charged to costs and expenses 99¢ 1,27¢ 1,427
Charged to other accourits (319 102 35
Deductions? (1,270 (1,259 (1,892
Balance at end of year $ 393 $ 452¢ $ 4,39¢
Inventory Reserves:

Balance at beginning of year $ 325 $ 3,72¢  $ 4,17¢
Charged to costs and expenses 622 1,04« 2,17¢
Charged to other accourits (199 (88) 2
Deductions® (40€) (1,430 (2,625
Balance at end of year $ 327 % 3,250 $ 3,72¢
Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets:

Balance at beginning of year $ 724 % 4,71¢  $ 3,22¢
Charged to costs and expenses (636€) 2,23¢ 687
Charged to other accourits (908) 28E 803
Balance at end of year $ 569¢ $ 7,24 $ 4,71¢

@ Primarily includes impact from foreign currencydtuations.
@Includes accounts determined to be uncollectibtecrarged against reserves, net of collectionscoaumts previously charged against reserves.
®@Includes inventory identified as excess, slow mgwn obsolete and charged against reserves.

All other schedules are omitted because they atepglicable or the required information is shownttie Consolidated Financial Statements or |
thereto.
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3.

Exhibits

Item # Description Method of Filing
3i Restated Articles of Incorporation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3i to the Camgs Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006.
3ii Certificate of Designation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to @wmpany's Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2006.
3iii Amended and Restated By-Laws Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(iii) to tBiempanys Curren
Report on Form 8-K dated December 14, 2010.
41 Rights Agreement, dated as of NovembeRQ06, between the Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Form 8tated
Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Rights Agent November 14, 2006.
10.1 Tennant Company Executive Nonqualified Deferred @ensation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenPany’s Form
Plan, as restated effective January 1, 2009, agdedé 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012.
10.2 Form of Amended and Restated Managemergehgent and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thenpany's Form
Executive Employment Agreement* 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.
10.3 Schedule of parties to Management and Executivel@mznt Filed herewith electronically.
Agreement
104 Tennant Company Non-Employee Director iS@ption Plan (as Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to thenpany’s Form
amended and restated effective May 6, 2004)* 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004.
10.5 Tennant Company Amended and Restated 1999 Stoehtiae Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Canyis Proxy
Plan* Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Sharehsléied on
March 15, 2006.
10.6 Tennant Company 2007 Stock Incentive Plan* Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to @@npany’s Proxy
Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Sharehsléiked on
March 15, 2007.
10.7 Credit Agreement dated as of May 5, 2011 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011.
10.8 Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement dated April 28513 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenPany's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013.
10.9 Deferred Stock Unit Agreement (awards in and &698)* Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to tleenPany’s Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.
10.10 Tennant Company 2014 Short-Term Incentive Plan* Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Canyfs Proxy
Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Sharetrsléieed on
March 11, 2013.
10.11 Private Shelf Agreement dated as of July 29, 2009 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenPany's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2009.
10.12 Amendment No. 1 to Private Shelf Agreendaited as of May 5, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany's Form
2011 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011.
10.13 Amendment No. 2 to Private Shelf Agreement dateaf dsily 24, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenPany's Current
2012 Report on Form 8-K filed on July 26, 2012.
10.14 Amended and Restated 2010 Stock InceRtae, as Amended* Incorporated by referenc®pjeendix A to the Company's Proxy
Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Sharehsléied on
March 11, 2013.
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant Filed herewith electronically.
23.1 Consent of KPMG, LLP Independent Registéreblic Accounting Filed herewith electronically.
Firm
311 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Extve Officer Filed herewith electronically.
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CertificatiorCtfief Financial Officer Filed herewith electrcally.
32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Oéfic Filed herewith electronically.
32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Fineh©fficer Filed herewith electronically.
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101 The following financial information from Tennant @pany’s Filed herewith electronically.
annual report on Form 10-K for the period endeddbauer 31,
2014, filed with the SEC on February 27, 2015, faited in
Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL)th@
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the yezilea
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (ii) the Conatslitl
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the yeatscen
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (iii) the Codatdid Balance
Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, (iv) tmsdidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Desredih 2014,
2013 and 2012, (v) the Consolidated Statementhafeholders'
Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 281832012, an
(vi) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent required to be filed as an exhibit to thisual report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be signedson it
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

TENNANT COMPANY

By

Date

/sl H. Chris Killingstad

H. Chris Killingstad

President, CEO and

Board of Directors
February 27, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this repas been signed by the following persons on lhehal
of the Registrant and in the capacities and or#ttes indicated.

By

Date

By

Date

By

Date

By

Date

By

Date

By

Date

/sl H. Chris Killingstad

H. Chris Killingstad
President, CEO and
Board of Directors

February 27, 2015

/s/ Thomas Paulson

Thomas Paulson

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
February 27, 2015

/sl Azita Arvani

Azita Arvani
Board of Directors
February 27, 2015

/s/ William F. Austen

William F. Austen
Board of Directors
February 27, 2015

/sl Carol S. Eicher

Carol S. Eicher
Board of Directors
February 27, 2015

/s/ James T. Hale

James T. Hale
Board of Directors
February 27, 2015

By

Date

By

Date

By

Date

By

Date

By

Date
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/s/ David Mathieson

David Mathiaso
Board of Directors
February 27, 2015

/s/ Donal L. Mulligan

Donal L. Mulligan
Board of Directors
February 27, 2015

/sl Stephen G. Shank

Stephen G. Shank
Board of Directors
Februan2075

/sl Steven A. Sonnenberg

Steven A. Sonnerth
Board of Directors
Februan2075

/s/ David S. Wichmann

David S. Wichmann
Board of Directors
Februan2075



SCHEDULE OF PARTIES TO
MANAGEMENT AND EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

Parties to current form of amended and restated maagement agreement:

Exhibit 10.3

Name Title

H. Chris Killingstad President and Chief Executive Officer

David W. Huml Senior Vice President, Global Marketing

Carol E. McKnight Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources
Thomas Paulson Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Michael Schaefer Senior Vice President, Chief Technical Officer
Donald B. Westman Senior Vice President, Global Operations

Heidi M. Wilson Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar

Richard H. Zay Senior Vice President, The Americas



Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Subsidiary
Applied Kehmaschinen GmbH

Applied Sweepers Group Leasing (U.K.)
Applied Sweepers Holdings. Limited

Applied Sweepers International Limited
Floorep Limited

Hofmans Machinefabriek

Nobles Floor Machines Limited
Recumbrimientos Tennant, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Servicios Integrados Tennant, S.A. de C.V.
Sociedade Alfa Ltda.

Tennant Asia Pacific Holdings Private Ltd.
Tennant Australia Pty Limited

Tennant B.V.

Tennant CAD Holdings LLC

Tennant Cleaning Systems and Equipment (Shangloaj)L@l.
Tennant Cleaning Systems India Private Limited
Tennant Company

Tennant Company Far East Headquarters PTE LTD
Tennant Company Japan, Ltd.

Tennant Europe B.V.

Tennant Europe N.V.

Tennant S.A.

Tennant GmbH & Co. KG

Tennant Holding B.V.

Tennant Holdings LLC

Tennant International Holding B.V.

Tennant N.V.

Tennant Netherland Holding B.V.

Tennant New Zealand Ltd.

Tennant Portugal E. de L., S.U., L. da
Tennant SA Holdings LLC

Tennant Sales & Service Canada ULC
Tennant Sales and Service Company
Tennant Sales and Service Spain, S.A.
Tennant Scotland Limited

Tennant Sverige AB

Tennant UK Cleaning Solutions Limited
Tennant UK Limited

Tennant Uruguay S.A.

Tennant Ventas & Servicios de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Tennant Verwaltungs-gesellschaft GmbH
TNC CV

Walter-Broadley Machines Limited
Walter-Broadley Limited

Water Star, Inc.

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction of Organization

Federal Republic of Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Mexican States
United Mexican States
Federative Republic of Brazil
Republic of Singapore
Australia
Netherlands
Minnesota
People’s Republic of China
Republic of India
Minnesota
Republic of Singapore
Japan
Netherlands
Belgium
French Republic
Federal Republic of Germany
Netherlands
Minnesota
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
New Zealand
Portuguese Republic
Minnesota
British Columbia, Canada
Minnesota
Kingdom of Spain
United Kingdom
Kingdom of Sweden
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Eastern Republic of Uruguay
United Mexican States
Federal Republic of Germany
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Ohio



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Tennant Company:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statements (Nos. 333-28641, 333-73388-51531, 333-157708, 3332581
333-80589, 333-181203, 333-188151, 333-114884,383d166342) on Form S-8 and (No. 333-184655) omF883 of Tennant Company
our report dated February 27, 2015, with respethéoconsolidated balance sheets of Tennant Comgadysubsidiaries as of Decembel
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statsnmé earnings, comprehensive income, cash flaws,shareholdergquity for each of tf
years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2014, and the delatancial statement schedule, and the effectisermd internal contr
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018jctv report appears in the December 31, 2014 ameyalrt on Form 16 of Tennan
Company.

/sl KPMG LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, H. Chris Killingstad, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKléF Tennant Compan

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’ other certifying officers and | are responsilie dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedurks tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the stegits internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registrang’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmiver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial informatior
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslymanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registraist’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2015 /sl H. Chris Killingstad

H. Chris Killingstad
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas Paulson, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on FornKléF Tennant Compan

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’ other certifying officers and | are responsilie dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contemid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedurks tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the stegits internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

The registrang’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobmiver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial informatior
and

any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslymanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registraist’
internal control over financial reporting.

February 27, 2015 /sl Thomas Paulson

Thomas Paulson
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Tennant @any (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddled December 31, 2035 filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), H. Chris Killingstad, President and Chief ExaeetOfficer
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptetbpursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxbeyf 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; an
(2) The information contained in this periodic repairlfy presents, in all material respects, the foiahcondition and results

operations of the Company.

February 27, 2015 /sl H. Chris Killingstad
H. Chris Killingstad
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date:




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Tennant @any (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddled December 31, 2035 filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), Thomas Paulson, Senior Vice President and Gfirgincia
Officer, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section @3&s adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sask@nxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; an
(2) The information contained in this periodic repairlfy presents, in all material respects, the foiahcondition and results
operations of the Company.

Date: February 27, 2015 /s/ Thomas Paulson
Thomas Paulson
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




